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Group Financial Highlights

2004 2005 2006

(a) Financial data (a)

(expressed in HK$'000)

Turnover 148,126 185,784 156,199

Gross profit 54,170 65,077 12,079

Profit (loss) for the year attributable

to equity holders of the Company 5,368 (29,781) (64,562)

Total borrowings 99,189 105,652 265,667

Equity attributable to equity holders

of the Company 180,546 151,997 90,274

Acquisition of property,

plant and equipment 25,112 13,846 9,787

Development costs

incurred or capitalised 1,327 2,418 1,620

Staff costs 23,829 24,980 28,956

Net asset attributable to equity

holders of the Company

per share(HK$) (note 1) 1 0.178 0.149 0.089

(b) Financial ratios (b)

Current ratio (note 2) 2 2.36 1.35 1.78

Quick ratio (note 3) 3 1.74 1.09 1.38

Gearing ratio (note 4) 4 55% 70% 294%

Notes:

(1) Net asset attributable Equity attributable
Number of issued

to equity holders of = to equity holders of ÷
shares at year end

the Company per share the Company

(2) Current ratio = Current assets ÷  Current liabilities

(3) Quick ratio = (Current assets – Inventories) ÷  Current liabilities

(4) Gearing ratio = Total borrowings 
 
÷

 Equity attributable

to equity holders of

the Company

(1)

=

(2) =

(3) =   

(4) =
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Directors' Business Review

CASIL Telecommunications Holdings Limited

On behalf of the Board of Directors, the business performance of

CASIL Telecommunications Holdings Ltd. (the "Company") and its

subsidiaries (collectively the "Group") for the financial year ended

31 December 2006 is summarized in the following paragraphs.

RESULTS SUMMARY

As of 31 December 2006, the Group’s turnover for the year 2006

amounted to HK$156.20 million with a loss of HK$65.23 million in

contrast to those for the year 2005 of HK$185.78 million and

HK$29.36 million respectively. The loss for the year was mainly

a t t r i b u t a b l e  t o  v a r i o u s  a l l o w a n c e s  r e l a t i n g  t o  t h e

telecommunication business made whereas there were expense

increases upon the investment and development period of new

businesses.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PROSPECTS

While the Group continued the sales of communication equipment

and the application services of Global Positioning System (GPS) for

the year 2006, the Group also continued increasing its investments

in new business intensively, aiming at exploring new operations

and new earning sources for its future development during the year.

In addition to continuation of increasing the investments in wind

energy plant project with the total accumulated investments to

date of HK$100 million, the Group on 15 February 2007 and 27

March 2007 entered into agreements whereby the Group will

further acquire from its parent company, China Academy of Launch

Vehicle Technology (“CALT”), new businesses comprising research

and development and production of wind energy facilities,

automotive engine management systems and components

manufacturing, automotive sealing products manufacturing, rare-

earth-permanent magnetic motors manufacturing, at the purchase

consideration of HK$900 million. The details of the proposed

acquisitions that will be completed by 30 September 2007 were

set out in an announcement made by the Company on 2 April 2007.

2006

15,620 6,523

2005 18,578 2,936

2006

GPS

1.00

9.00
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Directors' Business Review

The Group has confidence to bring new profits and returns from

the new areas of new energy businesses (wind energy plant and

generator), new material business (rare-earth-permanent magnetic

motors), automotive component  (electrical spraying and sealing

strip) apart from the telecommunication business through these

successive efforts.

Telecommunication Business

The major customers of the Group’s communication business are

operators in the PRC such as China Mobile, China Unicom, China

Telecom, China Netcom and China Railcom. We provide these

operators as well as those in the markets of Europe and America

with communication equipment of high capability/price value.

However, due to the reduction of investment in infrastructure of

5.8GHz wireless access network by those major operators and the

drop in profit margin in consequence of the keen competition, the

sales of communication products for the year recorded a decrease

as compared with last year.

On 22 November 2006, the Company entered into an agreement

with Brightness International Holdings Ltd. whereby it disposed of

60% of the entire equity interests in CASTEL Videotech (Hong Kong)

Ltd. in disposing its 60% interest of its video conferencing business

in effect in the course of introduction of new capital injection in

the business and acquiring the experience of the said purchaser in

the PRC distribution network with a view to extending the sales in

PRC market.

5.8GHz

60%

60%
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Directors' Business Review

CASIL Telecommunications Holdings Limited

Wind Energy Projects

On 30 March 2006, Crownplus International Ltd., a wholly-owned

subsidiary of the Company, entered into a joint venture agreement

with Longyuan Electric Group Corporation and Beijing Wan Yuan

Industry Corporation in respect of building, maintenance and

operation of wind energy plants and facilities in the Liaoning

Province of the PRC. This is the third wind energy plant project

following those in Jiangsu and Jilin, PRC.

The Group will benefit from the joint venture in strengthening the

Group’s investment in wind energy power plants given the shortage

of electricity supplies in the PRC and the global trend towards

renewable energy for environmental reasons assuring the

tremendous demands in the future.

Others

The Group has made an announcement on 2 April 2007 that the

Group entered into acquisition agreements with its parent

company, CALT, in exploring new businesses of new energy, new

materials, and automotive component and developing larger profit

centres.
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Directors' Business Review

HUMAN RESOURCES AND REMUNERATION
POLICY

As at 31 December 2006, the Group had 37 employees (2005: 41

employees) in the Hong Kong head office and 428 employees (2005:

531 employees) in the China Mainland offices. Remuneration of

employee is determined according to individual employee’s

performance and the prevailing trends in different areas and

reviewed on an annual basis. The Group also provides Mandatory

Provident Fund and medical insurance to its employees. In addition,

discretionary performance bonus and share option schemes are

available and are at the discretion of the Directors.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity and Financial Resources

Total borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2006 were

HK$265,667,000 (2005: HK$105,652,000), which were fixed rate

borrowings (2005: HK$58,765,000). All borrowings of the Group

were determined at market interest rate. The Group has not issued

any financial instruments for hedging or other purposes.

Gearing ratio (total borrowings over shareholders’ equity) as at 31

December 2006 was 294% (2005: 70%).

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2006, cer tain assets of the Group of

HK$1,537,000 (2005: HK$11,631,000) have been pledged to secure

bank facility.

37 41  

428 531

 

 

265,667,000 105,652,000

58,765,000

 

 294% 70%

1,537,000 11,631,000
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Directors' Business Review

CASIL Telecommunications Holdings Limited

Exchange and Other Exposures

Most of the Group’s business transactions were conducted in Hong

Kong dollars, Renminbi and United States dollars. The Group

expected that the exposure to exchange rates fluctuation was

minimal and therefore has not engaged in any hedging activities.

The Group did not have any contingent liabilities as at 31 December

2006.

A loan of US$6,000,000(HK$46,800,000)from a related company,

China Great Wall Industry Corporation, (“Great Wall”) which was an

associate or wholly-owned subsidiary (from December 2004) of

China Aerospace Science & Technology Corporation, included in

borrowings was described as a loan from an independent third

party or not separately disclosed in the previous reported financial

statements from those 31 December 2001 inadvertently. The loan

was separately disclosed as a loan from Great Wall in the

consolidated financial statements herein. This connected loan

transaction was and is exempted from any disclosure or

shareholders approval requirements under the Rule 14.24(8) of the

former Listing Rules and Rule 14A.65(4) of the current Listing Rules

by virtue of normal commercial term of interest rate 4.25% per

annum and no security over the assets of the Group as the condition

for the provision.

APPRECIATION

I would like to take this opportunity to thank my fellow directors

and all the staff members for their hard work and dedication during

the year under review.

By Order of the Board

Wu Yansheng

Chairman

Hong Kong, 19 April 2007

 

( )

6,000,000

(46,800,000 )

4.25

14.24(8)

14A.65(4)
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wu Yansheng, professor, aged 43, obtained his Bachelor's

degree in Electrical Engineering from Tsinghua University and

Master's degree in Space Vehicle Design from CALT. Mr. Wu obtained

great honours, such as Special Allowance from State Council of the

People's Republic of China, Specially Contributed Expert of China

Aerospace Science and Technology Corporation ("CASC"),  Space

Prizes of CASC in 2000 and 2001, Excellent Contributor in Manned

Space Project from CASC, Labor Medal Winner from China

Federation of Labor Unions, Senior Professional Manager from

China Enterprise Confederation and China Entrepreneur

Association, and Excellent Researcher from China Association of

Science and Technology. Since joining in the Astronautical Systems

Engineering Institute of CALT in 1989, Mr. Wu has assumed the posts

of Designer, Section Chief, Division Chief and Director successively.

Since 2002, Mr. Wu has served as the 10th President of CALT (the

youngest ever in CALT). He was appointed as a Non-executive

Director and Chairman of the Company on 14 February 2006.

Mr. Liang Xiaohong, senior engineer, aged 51, obtained his

Master's degree in World Economy from the Party School of the

Communist Party of China (“CPC”) Central Committee. He has been

honoured with Specially Appointed Expert of school of Economics

& Management of Beijing University. He started to work with

Astronautical Systems Engineering Institute of CALT in 1987. He has

been the President Assistant cum Director of Administrative Office

of CALT since 2000. At present, he acts as Vice President of CALT.

With great efforts for years, he has accumulated rich experiences

and theories on human resource management and business

administration. He was appointed as a Non-executive Director and

Vice-chairman of the Company on 14 February 2006.

43

2000 2001

1989

2002

2006 2 14

51

1987

2000

2006 2 14
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

CASIL Telecommunications Holdings Limited

Mr. Tang Guohong, professor , aged 45, graduated from Beijing

University of Aeronautics & Astronautics ("Beihang University") with

Master's degree in Engineering. He went to Germany in 1987 and

obtained PhD from Max-Planck Institute for Metals Research. He

has served as Director of Staff Office, Deputy Dean and Professor in

the Material Science and Engineering Department of Beihang

University, Deputy General Manager and Administrative Deputy

General Manager with China Aerospace Industry Supply &

Marketing Corporation. He now acts as the Chief of Business and

Investment Depatment of CALT, with rich experiences in scientific

research, business administration and capital operation. He was

appointed as a Non-executive Director of the Company on 14

February 2006.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Han Shuwang, professor, aged 42, obtained Bachelor's

degree in Computer Science and Master's degree in Economics and

Management from Tongji University and American Southwest

University respectively. He is a Visiting Professor of Tongji University

and achieved Space Award from CASC. He served as Deputy Division

Chief, Deputy Chief Designer, Director Assistant and Deputy Director

with the Institute of Space Automation Control of CALT between

1988 and 1997, Deputy Director of Political Division of CALT in 1997,

Director of Administrative Office of CALT in 1998, General Manager

of Beijing Wan Yuan Industry Corporation in 1999, President

Assistant of CALT in 2000. Since 2002, he has served as vice president

of CALT, possessing rich experiences in strategic research and

business administration. He was appointed as an Executive Director

and Vice-chairman of the Company on 14 February 2006.

45

1987

2006 2 14

42

1988

1997

1998

1999 2000

2002

2006 2 14
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Wang Xiaodong, aged 41, is the Executive Director and

General Manager of the Company. Mr. Wang graduated from Beijing

University of Aeronautics and Astronautics with a Bachelor's degree

in Electronic Engineering and obtained an MBA from the University

of South Australia. During 1989 to 1998, he worked with Beijing

Institute of Spacecraft System Engineering under the China

Academy of Space Technology, the Comprehensive Planning Bureau

of the Ministry of Aerospace Industry of China and then the General

Office of China Aerospace Corporation, as Assistant Engineer,

Engineer, Senior Engineer, and Secretary to the President cum

Deputy Director of the President Office. In 1999, he, possessing

extensive experience in research and management, was appointed

the Executive Director cum Deputy General Manager of China

Aerospace International Holdings Limited. He has been appointed

as Executive Director of the Company since May 1999.

Mr. Li Guang, senior engineer, aged 43, graduated from Tianjin

University with Master's degree in Industrial Automation. He has

been the Designer with the 14th Institute of CALT between 1991

and 1996, Division Chief of Development Division, and General

Manager of Beijing Long March Hi-tech Corporation from 1996 to

2005. He has acted as Deputy Manager of Beijing Wan Yuan Industry

Corporation since 1998. Mr. Li Guang exhibits excellent experience

in scientific research, product development and business

administration. He was appointed as an Executive Director of the

Company on 14 February 2006 and as a Deputy General Manager

on 16 March 2007.

41

1989 1998

1999

1999 5

43

1991

1996 14

1996 2005

1998

2006 2

14 2007 3 16
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

CASIL Telecommunications Holdings Limited

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Yiu Ying Wai, aged 54, was appointed an Independent

Non-executive Director and the Chairman of the Audit Committee

of the Company on 30 September 2004. He held a Bachelor's degree

in Architectural Studies from The University of Hong Kong. He was

a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified

Accountants, a member of Certified Management Accountants of

Canada and also a practising member of the Hong Kong Institute

of Certified Public Accountants in Hong Kong. Mr. Yiu is currently a

Partner of W. T. Wong and Company. He has over 20 years of

experience in auditing, accounting and financial management in

Hong Kong and overseas.

Mr. Wong Fai, Philip, aged 50, was appointed an Independent

Non-executive Director of the Company on 30 September 2004. Mr.

Wong has over 20 years' experience in the IT industry. He was highly

involved in many social activities of IT industry in Hong Kong and

the PRC as well as public service to the business community. He

was awarded the Hong Kong Ten Outstanding Young Person, and

was the founder of Hong Kong IT Charity Fund and the Council

Member of Hong Kong Polytechnic University. At present, he is the

Director of ValenceTech Ltd., the Advisor of Shanghai Jiao Tong

University and the Advisory Member of China National Committee

for Pacific Economic Cooperation under Pacific Economic

Cooperation Council.

Mr. Zhu Shixiong, aged 65, is the current Vice Chief Executive

of the Hong Kong Chinese Enterprises Association Limited. He

graduated from the Shanghai Municipal University of Science and

Technology with a Bachelor's degree in Chemistry. He previously

held the posts of Deputy Director of the Shanghai Municipal

Chemical Industrial Bureau, Executive Director and Vice-President

of Shanghai Industrial Investment (Holdings) Company Limited and

Chairman of the Tien Chu Ve-Tsin Chemical Industries (H.K.) Ltd. He

has over 20 years of experience in chemical production and

technology as well as enterprise management. He had been a

Director of the Company since May 1997 and was an Independent

Non-executive Director from May 2001.

54 2004 9 30

20

50 2004 9 30

20

65

20

1997 5 2001 5
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Moh Kwen Yung, aged 68, graduated with a university

Bachelor's degree in Civil Engineering in 1958 and worked as a

Design Engineer with Fujian Hydroelectric Design Centre with

par t icipating in designing dams, tunnels, harbours and

hydroelectric power stations from 1958 to 1962. From 1962 to 1971,

he worked as a Site Agent for Paul Y. Construction Co. Ltd. in Hong

Kong. In 1971, he established his own construction company,

Success Construction Co., as a sole proprietor and ran the company

until 1982. In 1982, he entered into a joint venture with Japan

Development to form Chevalier Construction Company Ltd. in Hong

Kong, where he worked as a Director and General Manager until he

emigrated to Canada at the end of 1989. In 1993, he returned to

Hong Kong. He had been a Director of the Company since May 1997

and was an Independent Non-executive Director from May 2001.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Zhou Xiaoyun, aged 58, is a Deputy General Manager of

the Company. Mr. Zhou joined Hung Nien Electronics Limited

("Hung Nien") in 1985 and was the Chairman of Hung Nien. He

graduated from Changsha Engineering Institute in 1975. Mr. Zhou

has around 30 years of experience in engineering research and

industrial management. He was appointed as an Executive Director

of the Company in May 1997 and resigned therefrom on 14 February

2006.

Mr. Han Jiang , aged 44, is the Financial Controller of the

Company. Mr. Han graduated from the Central Institute of Finance

and Banking with a Bachelor's degree in Economics and is a

Certified Public Accountant of America. After graduation, he worked

with the Finance Department of China Aerospace Corporation and

was responsible for product costing and working capital

management. In 1992, he joined APT Satellite Holdings Limited and

had participated in the works of satellite project financing,

corporate financing and initial public offering in addition to normal

financial duties. He was appointed as an Executive Director of the

Company in September 2001 and resigned therefrom on 14

February 2006.

68 1958

1958 1962

1962 1971

1971

1982

1982

1989

1993 1997 5

2001 5

58

1985

1975

30

1997 5 2006

2 14

44

1992

2001 9 2006

2 14
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

CASIL Telecommunications Holdings Limited

Mr. Zang Wei, senior engineer, aged 38, obtained his Bachelor's

degree in Engineering at the Wireless Engineering Faculty and his

Master's degree in Telecommunication and Electronic Engineering

from Harbin Institute of Technology. He also obtained PhD in

Economics from Remin's University of China. Since he joined the

China Aerospace Industry Department in 1992, he has assumed the

Deputy Director with the International Cooperation Division of

China Academy of Space Technology, the Deputy Director with

Assets Management Department, Trading and Investment

Department of CASC, the Director and Managing Director of China

Spacesat Co., Ltd. (listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange as A share

company), the Director and Senior Vice President of China Spacesat

Technology Co., Ltd (listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange as A

share company) successively. He was appointed as a Deputy General

Manager of the Company on 16 March 2007.

Mr. Shi Weiguo, senior engineer, aged 36, graduated from

Soochow University with a Bachelor's degree in Science in 1992.

He successively joined the Nuclear Department in Suzhou Nuclear

Power Research Institute Co., Ltd and China Jiangsu International

Economic Technical Cooperation Corporation. Since December

2005, he has assumed the office in Beijing Wan Yuan Industry

Corporation as a Deputy General Manager. He was appointed as a

Deputy General Manager of the Company on 16 March 2007.

38

1992

A

A 

2007 3 16

36 1992

2005 12

2007 3 16
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Mr. Li You, senior engineer, aged 43, senior engineer.  Graduated

from Huazhong University of Science and Technology with the

Bachelor's degree in Electronic Material and Component

Specialized Technology, he has studied courses in economics,

banking, finance and business management of engineering

management research class in Beijing Institute of Technology. Since

1986, he successively served in Beijing Telemetering Technical

Research Institute, CALT’s Political Division, Administrative Office,

Civilian Use Development Department as Deputy Director,

Comprehensive Management Director in which he was engaged

in the special case development, technical division management,

public relation management, and civil  assets intergrative

management work. In 2003, he served as Deputy Chief of

Investment Management Department in CALT, responsible on

CALT’s civil assets planning management, corporate management,

capital restructuring, and management appraisal work. Having

possessed extensive experience in aerospace civil industry

management, he was appointed as a Deputy General Manager of

the Company on 16 March 2007.

Mr. Chau Chiu Suen, aged 51, graduated from South China

Polytechnic University. He has over 10 years of experience as senior

management of conglomerates in the Mainland China and has

extensive business experience in the operation of wireless

telecommunication access, integrated Intelligient Transportation

System (‘ITS’) and ITS suppliers. He is the Chairman of Beijing Qihua

Communications Limited and Tangshan Qihua GPS Limited. He is

also the Vice-chairman of CASTEL Intelligent Transportation System

Limited.

43

1986

2003

2007 3 16

51

10
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

CASIL Telecommunications Holdings Limited

Mr. Ng Yat Keung, Frederick, aged 52, is the Managing

Director of China Aerospace Telecommunications (Hong Kong)

Limited. Mr. Ng graduated from the Cambridgeshire College of Arts

and Technology in Britain with a Higher National Diploma in

Business Studies and obtained an MBA degree from the University

of Aston in Birmingham in Britain. He is a member of the British

Institute of Management. Mr. Ng has over 20 years of experience in

marketing and manufacturing operations in telecommunications

and electrical products. He joined the Group in September 2000.

52

20

2000 9
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INTRODUCTION

The Board of Directors of the Company (the "Board") is pleased to

present the Corporate Governance Report of the Group for the year

ended 31 December 2006.

COMMITMENT TO CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE

The Company acknowledges the importance of good corporate

governance practices and procedures and regards as preeminent

board of directors, sound internal controls and accountability to

all shareholders as the core elements of its corporate governance

principles. The Group endeavours to ensure that its businesses are

conducted in accordance with rules and regulations, and applicable

codes and standards.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Group has complied with all principles as set out in the Code

on Corporate Governance Practices in Appendix 14 of the Rules

Governing the Listing of Securities (the "Listing Rules") on the Stock

Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the "Code"), which became

applicable to the Group in respect of the year under review, and

complied with the relevant code provisions in the Code throughout

the year ended 31 December 2006, with the exception of one

deviation from the Code Provision A.4.1 of the Code which

stipulates that Non-executive Directors should be appointed for a

specific term subject to re-election.

All of the Directors of the Company including the Independent Non-

executive Directors are not appointed for a specific term but are

subject to retirement and rotation and re-election at the Company's

Annual General Meeting ("AGM") in accordance with the retirement

provisions under the Articles of Association of the Company. The

Company considers that sufficient measures have been taken in

this regard to ensure that the Group's corporate governance

practices are no less exacting than those in the Code.

A.4.1

.
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CASIL Telecommunications Holdings Limited

THE BOARD

Board Responsibilities and the Relationship

between Board and Management

The Board has the responsibility for management of the Group,

which includes formulating business strategies, and directing and

supervising the Group's affairs, approving interim reports and

annual reports, announcements and press releases of interim and

final results, considering dividend policy, and approving the issue,

allotment or disposal or grant of options in respect of unissued new

shares or debentures of the Group.

The overall management of the Group's business is vested in the

Board.

The Board takes responsibility to oversee all major matters of the

Group, including the approval and formulation of all policy matters,

overall strategies, internal control and risk management systems,

and monitoring the performance of the senior management.

The Board's role is not to manage the business whose responsibility

remains vested with management. The Board and management

fully appreciate their respective roles and are supportive of the

development of a healthy corporate governance culture.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of the

Group are delegated to the management. The Board gives clear

directions to the management as to their powers of management,

and circumstances under which the management should report

back. All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant

information as well as the advice and services of the Company

Secretary, with a view to ensuring that the Board procedures and

all applicable rules and regulations are followed. Each Director is

entitled to seek independent professional advice in appropriate

circumstances in carrying out their functions and duties after

making a request to the Board at the Group's expenses.
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Each Director is given contact details of the senior management

and is accessible to them for obtaining information and making

enquiries when required.

Board Composition

The Board currently comprises ten directors including three

Executive Directors, three Non-executive Directors and four

Independent Non-executive Directors. There is a majority of non-

executive directors on the Board, with a wide range of experience

and calibre bringing valuable judgment on issues of strategy,

performance and resources. The biographical details of the

Directors are set out on pages 11 to 15 of this Annual Report, which

demonstrates a diversity of skills, expertise, experience and

qualifications.

During the year 2006, the Board at all times met the requirements

of the Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules in appointment

of a sufficient number of four Independent Non-executive Directors

of whom Mr. Yiu Ying Wai ("Mr. Yiu") has appropriate professional

qualifications, accounting and financial management expertise as

set out on page 14 of this Annual Report.

The appointment of Independent Non-executive Directors adheres

to the guidelines for assessing independence set out in Rule 3.13

of the Listing Rules. The Group has received in writing confirmation

of their independence from each of the Independent Non-executive

Director and considers them to be independent of the management

and free of any relationship that could materially interfere with the

exercise of their independent judgment. The Board considers that

each of the Non-executive Director and Independent Non-executive

Director brings his own relevant expertise to the Board.

The directors are aware that they shall give sufficient time and

attention to the affairs of the Group.

11 15

3.10(1)   3.10(2)

( )

14

3.13
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CASIL Telecommunications Holdings Limited

Chairman and General Manager

The Chairman and the General Manager of the Group are Mr. Wu

Yansheng and Mr. Wang Xiaodong respectively. The roles of the

Chairman and the General Manager are segregated and assumed

by two separate individuals to strike a balance of power and

authority so that the job responsibilities are not concentrated on

any one individual. The Chairman of the Board is responsible for

the leadership, Group strategic and Board issues, while the General

Manager has the overall general management responsibilities for

Group operations and development in general.

Appointment, re-election and removal of Directors

The Group does not have a Nomination Committee. There are

formal, considered and transparent procedures for the appointment

and removal of Directors. The Board as a whole is responsible for

the procedure of agreeing to the appointment of its members and

for nominating appropriate person for election by shareholders at

the AGM, either to fill a causal vacancy or as an addition to the

existing Directors. In the nomination process, the Board of Directors

make reference to criteria including accomplishment and

experience in the industry, professional and educational

background and commitment in respect of available time and

relevant interest.

The process for re-election of a director is in accordance with the

Group's Articles of Association, which require that, other than those

Directors appointed during the year, one-third of the Directors for

the time being are required to retire by rotation at each AGM and

are eligible to stand for re-election. For those Directors appointed

by the Board during the year, they shall hold office until the next

following AGM and shall then be eligible for re-election. The annual

report and the circular for AGM contain detailed information on

election of Directors including detailed biography of all Directors

standing for re-election to ensure shareholders to make an

informed decision on their election.
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Board Meetings

The Board conducts meetings on a regular basis and on ad-hoc

basis, as required by business needs. During the year, the current

Board formed on 14 February 2006 held a total of six meetings and

at least once quarterly. The composition of the Board and

attendance of the Directors are set out below:

Attendance /

Number of Meetings

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Wu Yansheng (Chairman) 1/6

Mr. Liang Xiaohong (Vice-chairman) 1/6

Mr. Tang Guohong 3/6

Executive Directors

Mr. Han Shuwang (Vice-chairman) 3/6

Mr. Wang Xiaodong 6/6

Mr. Li Guang 6/6

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Yiu 5/6

Mr. Wong Fai, Philip 5/6

Mr. Zhu Shixiong 6/6

Mr. Moh Kwen Yung 6/6

Apart from the said meetings of the current Board, there was also a

meeting of the former Board held on 14 February 2006 where all of

the Directors, Mr. Rui Xiaowu, Mr. Wang Xiaodong, Mr. Zhou Xiaoyun,

Mr. Han Jiang, Mr. Guo Xianpeng, Mr. Xu Jian Hua, Mr. Ma Yucheng,

Mr. Yiu, Mr. Wong Fai, Philip, Mr. Zhu Shixiong and Mr. Moh Kwen

Yung attended the meeting .

:

1/6

1/6

3/6

3/6

6/6

6/6

5/6

5/6

6/6

6/6
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For a regular Board meeting, notice of at least fourteen days is given

to all Directors of the Group, who are given an opportunity to

include matters in the agenda for discussion, and an agenda and

accompanying document for discussion are sent to all Directors of

the Group at least three days before the intended date of a regular

Board meeting. For all other Board meetings, reasonable notices

should be given.

Minutes of Board meetings and meetings of Board Committees are

kept by the secretary of the Group and are open for inspection at

any reasonable notice by any Director of the Group. Further, minutes

of the Board meetings and meetings of Board Committees recorded

in sufficient detail the matters considered by the Board and the

Board Committees and decisions reached, including any concerns

raised by Directors or dissenting views expressed. Draft and final

versions of minutes of Board meetings are sent to all Directors of

the Group for their comment and records respectively, in both cases

within a reasonable time after the Board meeting is held.

If a substantial shareholder or a Director has a conflict of interest in

a matter to be considered by the Board which the Board has

determined to be material, the matter shall not be dealt with by a

Committee (except an appropriate Board Committee set up of that

purpose pursuant to a resolution passed in a Board meeting) but a

Board meeting shall be held, during which such Director must

abstain from voting. Independent Non-executive Directors who, and

whose associates, have no material interest in the transaction shall

be present at such Board meeting.

Board Committees

The Board has established three committees, namely, the

Remuneration Committee, Audit Committee and Development and

Investment Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the

Group's affairs. All Board Committees of the Group are established

with defined written terms of reference. The terms of reference of

the Board Committees are posted on the Group's website and are

available to shareholders upon request.
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The Board Committees are provided with sufficient resources to

discharge their duties, and upon reasonable request, are able to

seek independent professional advices under appropriate

circumstances at the Group's expenses.

A) Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee consists of one Non-

executive Director and two Independent Non-executive

Directors. The Remuneration Committee is responsible for

making recommendations to the Board on the Group's

policy and structure for all remuneration of Directors and

senior management and on the establishment of formal and

transparent procedures for developing policies on such

remuneration.

The main principles of the Group's remuneration policies

are:

1. No Directors or any of his associates is involved in

deciding his own remuneration;

2. Recommendations will be made to the Board at least

one time per year of the specific remuneration

packages of all Executive Directors and senior

management, including benefits in kind, pension

rights and compensation payments which include

any compensation payable for loss or termination

of their office or appointment, and the remuneration

of Non-executive Directors. The Remuneration

Committee should consider factors such as salaries

paid by comparable companies, time commitment

and responsibilities of the Directors, employment

conditions elsewhere in the Group and desirability

of performance-based remuneration; and

3. Review and recommend per formance-based

remuneration by reference to corporate goals and

objectives resolved by the Board from time to time.

A)

1.

2.

3.
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The Remuneration Committee has reviewed and discussed

the remuneration of the Directors and senior management.

The Committee has also approved the remuneration and

the discretionary bonuses of the Executive Directors by

reference to their respective levels of responsibilities and

performance, industry benchmarks, prevailing marketing

conditions and the Group's financial performance. The

Director's fees and any other reimbursement or emolument

payable to the Directors during the year are disclosed in the

Group's financial statements.

One committee meeting was convened for discussing the

remuneration policy for the year ended 31 December 2006

and the attendances of each committee member at the

meeting are set out as follows:

Attendance /

Number of Meetings

Non-Executive Director

Mr. Wu Yansheng (Chairman) 1/1

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Yiu 1/1

Mr. Wong Fai, Philip 1/1

B) Audit Committee

The Audit Committee consists of four Independent Non-

executive Directors. The written terms of reference which

describe the authority and duties of the Audit Committee

were prepared and adopted with reference to "A Guide for

Effective Audit Committee" published by the Hong Kong

Institute of Certified Public Accountants and in accordance

with the Code.

1/1

1/1

1/1

B)
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The Audit Committee is responsible for the appointment of

external  auditors, review of the Group's f inancial

information and oversight of the Group's financial and

accounting practices, internal control and risk management.

It is also responsible for reviewing the interim and final

results of the Group.

The audited financial statements for the year ended 31

December 2006 have been reviewed by the Audit

Committee.

Two committee meetings were convened during the year

ended 31 December 2006 and the attendances of each

committee member at these meetings are set out as follows:

Attendance /

Number of Meetings

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Yiu 2/2

Mr. Wong Fai, Philip 2/2

Mr. Zhu Shixiong 2/2

Mr. Moh Kwen Yung 2/2

The Audit  Committee has reviewed the terms of

engagement of the external auditors, the revised accounting

standards, the 2006 interim financial report and the 2006

annual financial statements. The Audit Committee also

reviewed the internal control systems, and met with the

external auditors to discuss with them the nature and scope

of the audit and reporting obligation prior to the

commencement of the audit.

2/2

2/2

2/2

2/2
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C) Development and Investment Committee

The Development and Investment Committee consists of

two Non-executive Directors, two Executive Directors and

one Independent Non-executive Director. The Development

and Investment Committee is responsible for the review of

the effectiveness of the system of internal control covering

all material controls, including financial and operational

controls and risk management functions.

The Board has considered the better allocation of resources

and has instructed the Audit Committee to discuss the

effectiveness of the system of internal control of the

Company. As such, the Group considers that sufficient

review to ensure that the Group's internal control is in order

has been taken and no Development and Investment

Committee meeting was convened during the year ended

31 December 2006.

The composition of the Development and Investment

Committee is set out in the corporate information on page

3 of this annual report.

Internal Control

The Directors have the overall responsibility for internal control and

setting appropriate policies. The Board, through the Audit

Committee, has reviewed the effectiveness of the Group's system

of internal control.

The Group's internal control system includes a well defined

management structure with limits of authority which is designed

for the achievement of business objectives, so as to safeguard assets

against unauthorized use or disposition, to ensure proper

maintenances of books and records for the provision of reliable

financial information for internal use or publication, and to ensure

compliance with relevant legislation and regulations.

C)

3

 

, 
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

During the year ended 31 December 2006, the Group has adopted

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed

issuers (the "Model Code") as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing

Rules as the code for dealing in securities of the Group by the

Directors. Having made specific enquiry, all the Directors confirmed

that they have complied with the Model Code throughout the year.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL
REPORTING

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the preparation

of the financial statements of the Group and ensure that the

financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December

2006 have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial

Reporting Standards and Hong Kong Accounting Standard and

Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public

Accountants, accounting principles generally accepted in Hong

Kong and disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance.

The statement of external auditors of the Group, Deloitte Touche

Tohmatsu, about their  repor ting responsibi l it ies on the

consolidated financial statements of the Group is set out in the

Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 39 to 41 of this annual

report.

 • 

39 41
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AUDITOR'S REMUNERATION

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu (“DTT”) was appointed as the external

auditors of the Group by the shareholders at the last AGM of the

Group. The remuneration to DTT recognised for the year ended 31

December 2006 was set out as follows:

Fees relating to services rendered

HK$'000

Audit services 1,629

Non-audit services  252

1,881

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The objective of shareholder communication is to provide the

Group's shareholders with detailed information on the Group so

that they can exercise their rights as shareholders in an informed

manner.

The Group uses several formal channels to ensure fair disclosure

and comprehensive and transparent reporting of its performance

and activities. These include interim and annual reports,

announcements and circulars.

The Group encourages its shareholders to attend AGM to ensure a

high level of accountability and to keep informed of the Group's

strategy and goals. The Chairman of the Board and the chairman of

all the Board Committees, or in their absence, other members of

the respective committees, are available to answer any questions

from the shareholders. A separate resolution is proposed by the

Chairman in respect of each issue to be considered at the AGM,

including the re-election of Directors.

( )

 

:

1,629

 252

1,881
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An AGM circular is distributed to all shareholders at least 21 days

prior to the AGM, setting out details of each proposing resolution,

voting procedures (including procedures for demanding and

conducting a poll) and other relevant information.

The Chairman explains the procedures for demanding and

conducting a poll again at the beginning of the AGM, and (except

where a poll is demanded) reveals how may proxies for and against

have been received in respect of each resolution. In case poll voting

is conducted, the poll results will be posted on the websites of the

Group and the Stock Exchange on the business day following the

shareholders' meeting.

As a channel to further promote effective communication, the

Group maintains a website at http://www.castelecom.com where

the Group's announcements, business developments and

operations, financial information, corporate governance practices

and other information are posted.

http://www.castelecom.com
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The Directors present their annual report and the audited financial

statements for the year ended 31 December 2006.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and

the activities of its principal subsidiaries and associates are set out

in note 36 to the consolidated financial statements.

MATERIAL TRANSACTIONS

Wind Energy Project

On 30 March 2006, Crownplus International Ltd. (“Crownplus”), a

wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a joint

venture agreement with Longyuan Electric Group Corporation and

Beijing Wan Yuan Industry Corporation in respect of building,

maintenance and operation of wind energy plants and facilities in

the Liaoning Province of the PRC. The details of the joint venture

company, Aerospace Long Yuan (Benxi) Wind Power Co., Ltd., are as

follows:

Business scope : wind power generation; wind field

survey and design and construction

work

Operation period : 20 years

Production capacity : 30 megawatt

Total investment : RMB 284,230,000

Total registered capital : RMB 93,800,000 (Crownplus’ share:

40%, RMB 37,520,000)

36

20

30

284,230,000

93,800,000

40% 37,520,000
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POST BALANCE SHEET EVENT

Details of the post balance sheet event of the Group are set out in

note 35 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2006 are

set out in the consolidated income statement on page 42.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group during

the year are set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial

statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Movements in the share capital of the Company during the year

are set out in note 28 to the consolidated financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or

redeemed any of the Company's listed securities during the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company's

Articles of Association or the laws in the Cayman Islands, which

would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis

to existing shareholders.

35

42

15

28
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Details of the share option scheme of the Company during the year

are set out in note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to shareholders

as at 31 December 2006 were nil (2005: HK$16,028,000).

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report are:

Non-executive

Mr. Wu Yansheng (Chairman)

 (appointed on 14 February 2006)

Mr. Liang Xiaohong (Vice-chairman)

  (appointed on 14 February 2006)

Mr. Tang Guohong

  (appointed on 14 February 2006)

Executive

Mr. Han Shuwang (Vice-chairman)

  (appointed on 14 February 2006)

Mr. Wang Xiaodong

Mr. Li Guang

  (appointed on14 February 2006)

Independent Non-executive

Mr. Yiu Ying Wai

Mr. Wong Fai, Philip

Mr. Zhu Shixiong

Mr. Moh Kwen Yung

29

16,028,000
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The terms of office of the Non-executive Director and each of the

Independent Non-executive Director is from the date they were last

elected to the date of their retirement by rotation in accordance

with the Company's Articles of Association.

Mr. Wang Xiaodong, Mr. Zhu Shixiong and Mr. Moh Kwen Yung shall

retire by rotation at the close of the forthcoming annual general

meeting in accordance with Article 99 of the Company's Articles of

Association and, being eligible, offers themselves for re-election.

DIRECTORS' SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming

annual general meeting has a service contract with the Company

or any of its subsidiaries, which is not determinable by the

employing company within one year without payment of

compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance to which the Company, or any of its

subsidiaries, its holding companies or its fellow subsidiaries was

party and in which a Director of the Company had a material

interest, either directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year

or at any time during the year.

99
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DIRECTORS'  AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES'
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES,  UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2006, none of the Directors and chief executives

of the Company or their respective associates had any interest or

short positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of

the Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning

of Part XV of the Securities and Future Ordinance (the "SFO")) which

are required to be notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange

of Hong Kong Limited (the "Stock Exchange") pursuant to Divisions

7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions

which they are taken or deemed to have under such provisions of

SFO), or to be recorded in the register required to be maintained

pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or otherwise to be notified to

the Company or the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code

for Securities Transaction by Directors of Listed Companies in the

Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange

(the "Listing Rules").

DIRECTOR'S RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Apart from as disclosed under the headings "Directors' and chief

executives' interests and short positions in shares, underlying shares

and debentures" and "Share option scheme", at no time during the

period was the Company, its subsidiaries or any of its associated

corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) a party to

any arrangements to enable the Directors of the Company or their

associates (as defined in the "Listing Rules") to acquire benefits by

means of acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company

or any other body corporate.

XV

XV 7 8

352

XV
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2006, so far as is known to the Directors, the

persons/entitles (other than a Director or chief executive of the

Company) had an interest or short position in the shares and

underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed

to the Company and the Stock Exchange under provisions of

Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or, who was, directly or

indirectly, interested in 10% or more of the nominal value of any

class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at

general meetings of any other member of the Group and the

amount of each of such person's interest in such securities or in

any options in respect of such capital were as follows:

XV 2 3

10%

Number of Percentage of
Name Capacity shares (Note 1) shareholding

1

CASC Interest of a controlled corporation (Note 2) 449,244,000 (L) 44.17%

2

CALT Interest of a controlled corporation (Note 3) 449,244,000 (L) 44.17%

3

Astrotech Beneficial owner 449,244,000 (L) 44.17%

Notes:

1. The letter "L" denotes the shareholder's long position in the shares.

2. CASC is deemed to be interested in 449,244,000 shares as it holds

100% of the issued share capital of CALT.

3. Astrotech is a wholly owned subsidiary of CALT. Accordingly, CALT

is deemed to be interested in all the shares held by Astrotech.

Save as disclosed herein, according to the register of interests kept
by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO and so far as was
known to the Directors, there is no other person/entity (other than
a Director or chief executive of the Company) who, as at 31
December 2006, had any interest or short position in the shares of
underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed
to the Company under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or
who was, directly or indirectly, interested in 10% or more of the
nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote
in all circumstances at general meetings of any member of the
Group in any options in respect of such capital.

1. L

2. 449,244,000

100%

3. Astrotech

Astrotech

336

XV 2 3

10%
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38.23%

21.94%

7.87%

3.87%

5%

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2006, turnover attributable to the

five largest customers of the Group accounted for approximately

38.23% of the Group's turnover and turnover attributable to the

Group's largest customer accounted for approximately 21.94% of

the Group's turnover.

For the year ended 31 December 2006, purchases attributable to

the five largest suppliers of the Group accounted for approximately

7.87% of the Group's purchases and purchases attributable to the

Group's largest supplier accounted for approximately 3.87% of the

Group's purchases.

None of the Directors, their associates or, to the best knowledge of

the Directors, any shareholder who owns more than 5% of the

Company's issued share capital had any interests in the above five

largest customers or suppliers.

PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout

the year ended 31 December 2006.

AUDITORS

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting to

re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditors of the

Company.

On behalf of the Board

Wu Yansheng

Chairman

Hong Kong, 19 April 2007
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

CASIL TELECOMMUNICATIONS HOLDINGS LIMITED

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of CASIL

Telecommunications Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its

subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages

42 to 111, which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at 31

December 2006, and the consolidated income statement, the

consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated

cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary of

significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated

financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation

and the true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial

statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting

Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public

Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing,

implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the

preparation and the true and fair presentation of the consolidated

financial statements that are free from material misstatement,

whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate

accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are

reasonable in the circumstances.

42 111
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Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated

financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion

solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume

responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for

the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance

with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong

Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require

that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform

the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the

consolidated financial statements are free from material

misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence

about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial

statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s

judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material

misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether

due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor

considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and

true and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements

in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the

circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion

on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also

includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies

used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the

directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the

consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient

and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true

and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 December

2006 and of the Group’s loss and cash flows for the year then ended

in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and

have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong

19 April 2007
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2006 2005

Notes HK$’000 HK$’000

Continuing operations

Turnover 6 141,275 173,478

Cost of sales (134,495) (111,785)

Gross profit 6,780 61,693

Other income 20,775 2,914

Distribution costs (9,458) (9,355)

Administrative expenses (74,795) (46,665)

Impairment loss recognised in

respect of intangible assets (9,403) —

Reversal of (allowance for) amount

due from an associate 10,019 (27,633)

Finance costs 8 (9,370) (5,803)

Share of results of associates (1,300) (259)

Loss before taxation (66,752) (25,108)

Taxation 9 1,751 439

Loss for the year from continuing

operations (65,001) (24,669)

Discontinued operation

Loss for the year from discontinued

operation 10 (224) (4,695)

Loss for the year (65,225) (29,364)

Attributable to:

Equity holders of the Company (64,562) (29,781)

Minority interests (663) 417

(65,225) (29,364)

Loss per share  Basic  14

From continuing and discontinued

operations HK(6.35) cents HK(2.93) cents

From continuing operations HK(6.33) cents HK(2.47) cents
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2006 2005

Notes HK$’000 HK$’000

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment 15 42,879 54,432

Goodwill 16 — 1,607

Intangible assets 17 9,800 33,634

Interest in associates 18 84,864 8,650

137,543 98,323

Current assets

Inventories 19 62,910 48,808

Trade and other receivables 20 92,615 165,873

Amounts due from related

companies 21 15,291 15,291

Amounts due from associates 22 25,969 323

Pledged bank deposits 23 1,537 1,351

Bank balances and cash 24 81,777 22,387

280,099 254,033

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables 25 41,587 85,385

Amounts due to related companies 21 4,407 4,407

Amounts due to associates 22 13,365 —

Taxation 330 65

Borrowings  amount due

within one year 26 97,350 98,998

157,039 188,855

Net current assets 123,060 65,178

Total assets less current liabilities 260,603 163,501

Non-current liabilities

Borrowings  amount due

after one year 26 168,317 6,654

Deferred taxation 27 — 2,217

168,317 8,871

92,286 154,630
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2006 2005

Note HK$’000 HK$’000

Capital and reserves

Share capital 28 101,714 101,714

Reserves (11,440) 50,283

Equity attributable to equity holders

of the Company 90,274 151,997

Minority interests 2,012 2,633

Total equity 92,286 154,630

The consolidated financial statements on pages 42 to 111 were

approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 19

April 2007 and are signed on its behalf by:

Han Shuwang Wang Xiaodong

DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

42 111
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 December 2006

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

Share
Share Special premium Exchange General Accumulated Minority

capital reserve account reserve reserve losses Total interests Total

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

(Note)

At 1 January 2005 101,714 117,554 473,093 829 3,430 (516,074 ) 180,546 796 181,342
Exchange difference arising on

translation of operations outside
Hong Kong not recognised in the
consolidated income statement — — — 1,232 — — 1,232 7 1,239

Loss for the year — — — — — (29,781 ) (29,781 ) 417 (29,364 )

Total recognised income (expense)
for the year — — — 1,232 — (29,781 ) (28,549 ) 424 (28,125 )

Capital contribution from minority
shareholders — — — — — — 1,413 1,413

At 31 December 2005 and
1 January 2006

101,714 117,554 473,093 2,061 3,430 (545,855 ) 151,997 2,633 154,630
Exchange difference arising on

translation of operations outside
Hong Kong not recognised in the
consolidated income statement

— — — 2,707 — — 2,707 42 2,749
Released on disposal and deemed

disposal of subsidiaries — — — 132 — — 132 — 132
Loss for the year — — — — — (64,562 ) (64,562 ) (663 ) (65,225 )

Total recognised income (expense)
for the year — — — 2,839 — (64,562 ) (61,723 ) (621 ) (62,344 )

At 31 December 2006
101,714 117,554 473,093 4,900 3,430 (610,417 ) 90,274 2,012 92,286

Note: The special reserve of the Group represents the difference between

the nominal amount of the share capital issued by the Company

and the nominal amount of the issued share capital of the

subsidiaries acquired by the Company and the aggregate amount

of HK$116,025,000 transferred from other reserves pursuant to the

Group’s reorganisation on 11 August 1997.

116,025,000
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

For the year ended 31 December 2006

CASIL Telecommunications Holdings Limited

2006 2005

Note HK$’000 HK$’000

Cash flows from operating activities
Loss before taxation (66,931) (29,874)
Adjustments for:

Interest income (567) (154)
Interest expenses 9,447 5,889
Share of results of associates 1,300 259
Amortisation of intangible assets 12,900 5,016
Depreciation of property,

plant and equipment 7,714 7,203
Loss on disposal of property,

plant and equipment 48 45
Impairment loss recognised

in respect of intangible assets 9,403 —
Gain on disposal and deemed

disposal of subsidiaries (2,641) —
Impairment loss recognised in

respect of goodwill 542 2,668
Allowance for doubtful debts 22,170 5,178
(Reversal of) allowance for amount

due from an associate (10,019) 27,633
Allowance for obsolete inventories 1,916 274
Write-off of development costs — 228
Write-back of interest payable (14,585) —
Effect of foreign exchange rate

changes on intercompany
balances (3,531) (1,017)

Operating cash flows before
movements in working capital (32,834) 23,348

(Increase) decrease in inventories (25,903) 22,754
Decrease (increase) in trade and other

receivables 43,941 (45,342)
Increase in amounts due from

associates (15,601) (8,466)
(Decrease) increase in trade and

other payables (5,382) 16,071
Increase in amounts due to related

companies — 592
Increase (decrease) in amounts due

to associates 13,316 (887)
Decrease in amount due to immediate

holding company of a shareholder — (923)
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

For the year ended 31 December 2006

2006 2005

Note HK$’000 HK$’000

Cash (used in) generated

from operations (22,463) 7,147

Income taxes (paid) refunded (118) 31

Net cash (used in) generated from

operating activities (22,581) 7,178

Investing activities

Capital contribution to associates (66,476) (7,640)

Purchase of property, plant

and equipment (9,787) (13,846)

Increase in pledged bank deposits (175) (87)

Interest received 567 154

Proceeds from disposal of property,

plant and equipment 458 184

Net cash inflow in respect of

disposal and deemed disposal

of subsidiaries 30 199 —

Development costs paid — (2,418)

Net cash used in investing activities (75,214) (23,653)

Financing activities

New loans raised 208,911 4,717

Repayments of bank loans

(44,800) (471)

Interest paid (7,463) (3,905)

Capital contribution from minority

shareholders — 1,413

Net cash from financing activities

156,648 1,754

Net increase (decrease) in cash and

cash equivalents 58,853 (14,721)

Effect of foreign exchange

rate changes 537 (508)

Cash and cash equivalents at

beginning of the year 22,387 37,616

Cash and cash equivalents at end

of the year, representing bank

balances and cash 81,777 22,387
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2006

CASIL Telecommunications Holdings Limited

1. GENERAL

The Company is incorporated in the Cayman Islands with

limited liability and its shares are listed on The Stock

Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Its

immediate substantial shareholder is Astrotech Group

Limited (“Astrotech”), a company incorporated in the

Cayman Islands which holds 44.17% of equity interest in the

Company with controlling interest. Astrotech is wholly

owned by China Academy of Launch Vehicle Technology

Limited (“CALT”). China Aerospace Science & Technology

Corporation (“CASC”) is a substantial shareholder of the

Company via the immediate shareholding of CALT. Both

CASC and CALT are companies established in the People’s

Republic of China (the “PRC”).

The address of the registered office and principal place of

business of the Company are disclosed in the corporate

information to the annual report.

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,

which is the same as the functional currency of the

Company.

The Company is an investment holding company. The

principal activities of its subsidiaries and associates are set

out in note 36.

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first time,

a number of new Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards

(“HKFRS”s), Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS”s) and

Interpretations (hereinafter collectively referred to as “new

HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified

Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), which are either effective for

accounting periods beginning on or after 1 December 2005

or 1 January 2006. The application of the new HKFRSs had

no material effect on how the results and financial position

for the current or prior accounting periods have been

prepared and presented. Accordingly, no prior period

adjustment is required.

1.

Astrotech Group Limited Astrotech

44.17%

Astrotech

36

2.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2006

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

The Group has not early applied the following new

standards, amendment and interpretations that have been

issued but are not yet effective. The directors of the

Company anticipate that the application of these standards,

amendment or interpretations will have no material impact

on the results and the financial position of the Group.

HKAS 1 (Amendment) Capital disclosures 1

HKFRS 7 Financial instruments: Disclosures 1

HKFRS 8 Operating segment 2

HK(IFRIC) — INT 7 Applying the restatement approach

under HKAS 29 Financial Reporting

in Hyperinflationary Economies 3

HK(IFRIC) — INT 8 Scope of HKFRS 2 4

HK(IFRIC) — INT 9 R e a s s e s s m e n t  o f  e m b e d d e d

derivatives 5

HK(IFRIC) — INT 10 Interim financial reporting and

impairment 6

HK(IFRIC) — INT 11 HKFRS 2 — Group and treasury

share transactions 7

HK(IFRIC) — INT 12 Service Concession Arrangement 8

2.

1 1

1

7

2

8

29

7
3

2 4

8

 
5

 9

 
6

 10

 

2  

 11 7

 8

 12
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2006

CASIL Telecommunications Holdings Limited

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2007.
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2009.
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 March 2006.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 May 2006.

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June 2006.

6 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 November

2006.
7 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 March 2007.

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2008.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared

under the historical cost convention.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared

in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting

Standards (“HKFRS”s) issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the

consolidated financial statements include applicable

disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of

Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, and

by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the

financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries.

Control is achieved where the Company has the power to

govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so

as to obtain benefits from its activities.

2.

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

3.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2006

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during

the year are included in the consolidated income statement

from the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective

date of disposal, as appropriate.

All significant intercompany transactions and balances

within the Group are eliminated on consolidation.

Minority interests in the net assets of consolidated

subsidiaries are presented separately from the Group’s

equity therein. Minority interests in the net assets consist

of the amount of those interests at the date of the original

business combination and the minority’s share of changes

in equity since the date of the combination. Losses

applicable to the minority in excess of the minority’s interest

in the subsidiary’s equity are allocated against the interests

of the Group except to the extent that the minority has a

binding obligation and is able to make an additional

investment to cover the losses.

3.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2006

CASIL Telecommunications Holdings Limited

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on acquisitions prior to 1 January 2005

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of subsidiaries for which

the agreement date is before 1 January 2005 represents the

excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s interest in

the fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the

relevant subsidiary at the date of acquisition.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill arising

from an acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant cash-

generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that

are expected to benefit from the synergies of the acquisition.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been

allocated is tested for impairment annually, and whenever

there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. For

goodwill arising on an acquisition in a financial year, the

cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated

is tested for impairment before the end of that financial year.

When the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit

is less than the carrying amount of the unit, the impairment

loss is allocated to reduce the carrying amount of any

goodwill allocated to the unit first, and then to the other

assets of the unit pro rata on the basis of the carrying

amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for

goodwill is recognised directly in the consolidated income

statement. An impairment loss for goodwill is not reversed

in subsequent periods.

On subsequent disposal of a subsidiary, the attributable

amount of goodwill  capital ised is  included in the

determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.

3.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2006

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Interests in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has

significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an

interest in a joint venture. Significant influence is the power

to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions

of the investee but is not control or joint control over those

policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are

incorporated in these consolidated financial statements

using the equity method of accounting. Under the equity

method, interests in associates are carried in the

consolidated balance sheet at cost as adjusted for post-

acquisition changes in the Group’s share of the net assets

of the associate, less any identified impairment loss. When

the Group’s share of losses of an associate equals or exceeds

its interest in that associate (which includes any long-term

interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net

investment in the associate), the Group discontinues

recognising its share of further losses. An additional share

of losses is provided for and a liability is recognised only to

the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive

obligations or made payments on behalf of that associate.

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s share

of the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and

contingent liabilities of the associate recognised at the date

of acquisition is recognised as goodwill. The goodwill is

included within the carrying amount of the investment and

is assessed for impairment as part of the investment.

Where a group entity transacts with an associate of the

Group, profits and losses are eliminated to the extent of the

Group’s interest in the relevant associate.

3.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2006

CASIL Telecommunications Holdings Limited

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration

received or receivable and represents amounts receivable

for goods and services provided in the normal course of

business, net of discount and sales related taxes.

Sales of goods are recognised when goods are delivered and

title has passed.

Service income is recognised when services are rendered.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time

basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the

effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that

exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts though

the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net

carrying amount.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less

accumulated depreciation and any identified impairment

losses.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of

property, plant and equipment over their estimated useful

lives from the date on which they are available for use and

after taking into account of their estimated residual values,

using the straight line method.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised

upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are

expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any

gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated

as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and

the carrying amount of the item) is included in the

consolidated income statement in the year in which the item

is derecognised.

3.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2006

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Intangible assets

On initial recognition, intangible assets acquired separately

are recognised at cost. After initial recognition, intangible

assets with finite useful lives are carried at costs less

accumulated amor t isat ion and any accumulated

impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible assets with

finite useful lives is provided on a straight-line basis over

their estimated useful lives.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible

asset are measured at the difference between the net

disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and

are recognised in the consolidated income statement when

the asset is derecognised.

Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an

expense in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from

development expenditure is recognised only if it is

anticipated that the development costs incurred on a

clearly-defined project will be recoverable through future

commercial activity. The resultant asset is amortised on a

straight line basis over its useful life, and carried at cost less

s u b s e q u e n t  a c c u m u l at e d  a m o r t i s a t i o n  a n d  a ny

accumulated impairment losses.

Where no internally-generated intangible asset can be

recognised, development expenditure is recognised as an

expense in the period in which it is incurred.

3.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2006

CASIL Telecommunications Holdings Limited

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment (other than goodwill)

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying

amounts of its assets to determine whether there is any

indication that those assets have suffered an impairment

loss. If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to

be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the

asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment

loss is recognised as an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the

carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised

estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased

carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that

would have been determined had no impairment loss been

recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an

impairment loss is recognised as income immediately.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable

value. Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost

method.

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are recognised as and included in

finance costs in the consolidated income statement in the

period in which they are incurred.

3.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2006

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently

payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the

year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the

consolidated income statement because it excludes items

of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other

years, and it further excludes items that are never taxable

or deductible. Current tax liabilities are measured using tax

rates that have been enacted substantively enacted by the

balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the

carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated

financial statements and the corresponding tax base used

in the computation of taxable profit, and is accounted for

using the balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax

liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary

differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the

extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available

against which deductible temporary differences can be

utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the

temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial

recognition (other than in a business combination) of other

assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the

taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

3.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2006

CASIL Telecommunications Holdings Limited

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at

each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is

no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be

available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected

to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the

asset realised, based on tax rates that have been enacted or

substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. Deferred

tax is charged or credited to the consolidated income

statement, except when it relates to items charged or

credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is

also dealt with in equity.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases when the terms of the

lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of

ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as

operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Rental payable under operating leases are charged to profit

or loss on a straight line basis over the term of the relevant

lease. Benefits received and receivable as an incentive to

enter into an operating lease are recognised as a reduction

of rental expense over the lease term on a straight line basis.

3.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2006

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Retirement benefit schemes

Payments to the defined contribution retirement schemes

are charged as an expense as they fall due.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on

the consolidated balance sheet when a group entity

becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the

instrument. Financial assets and financial liabilities are

initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are

directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial

assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and

financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are

added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial

assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial

recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the

acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair

value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in

profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified as loans and

receivables. All regular way purchases or sales of financial

assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date

basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales

of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the

time frame established by regulation or convention in the

marketplace. The accounting policies adopted in respect of

loans and receivables are set out below.

3.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2006

CASIL Telecommunications Holdings Limited

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets

with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted

in an active market. At each balance sheet date subsequent

to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including trade

and receivables, amounts due from related companies,

amounts due from associates, bank balances and pledged

bank deposits) are carried at amortised cost using the

effective interest method, less any identified impairment

losses. An impairment loss is recognised in consolidated

income statement when there is objective evidence that the

asset is impaired, and is measured as the difference between

the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the

estimated future cash flows discounted at the original

effective interest rate. Impairment losses are reversed in

subsequent periods when an increase in the asset’s

recoverable amount can be related objectively to an event

occurring after the impairment was recognised, subject to

a restriction that the carrying amount of the asset at the

date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the

amortised cost would have been had the impairment not

been recognised.

3.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2006

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the

Group are classified according to the substance of the

contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions

of a financial liability and an equity instrument. An equity

instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest

in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities.

The accounting policies adopted for specific financial

liabilities are set out below.

Bank borrowings

Interest-bearing bank loans and overdrafts are initially

measured at fair value, and are subsequently measured at

amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method. Any

difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs)

and the settlement or redemption of borrowings is

recognised over the term of the borrowings in accordance

with the Group’s accounting policy for borrowings costs.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including trade and other payables,

amounts due to related companies and amounts due to

associates are subsequently measured at amortised cost,

using the effective interest rate method.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at

the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

3.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2006

CASIL Telecommunications Holdings Limited

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual

rights to receive cash flows from the assets expire or the

assets are transferred and the Group has transferred

substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the

financial assets. On derecognition of a financial asset, the

difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum

of the consideration received and receivable and any

cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised directly

in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation

specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled

or expires. The difference between the carrying amount of

the financial liability derecognised and the consideration

paid or payable is recognised in accumulated losses.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual

group entity, transactions in currencies other than the

functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are

recorded in its functional currency (i.e. the currency of the

primary economic environment in which the entity

operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates

of the transactions. At each balance sheet date, monetary

items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated

at the rates prevailing on the balance sheet date. Non-

monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost

in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

3.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2006

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary

items, and on the translation of monetary items, are

recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial

statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign

operations are translated into the presentation currency of

the Company (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the rate of exchange

prevailing at the balance sheet date, and their income and

expenses are translated at the average exchange rates for

the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during

the period, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at

the dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences

arising, if any, are recognised as a separate component of

equity (the translation reserve). Such exchange differences

are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which the

foreign operation is disposed of.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on acquisition

of foreign operations prior to 1 January 2005 are treated as

assets and liabilities of that foreign operation and translated

at the rate of exchange prevailing at the balance sheet date.

Exchange difference arising are recognised in the translation

reserve.

3.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2006

CASIL Telecommunications Holdings Limited

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

The key assumption concerning the future, and other key

sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet date,

that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment

to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the

next financial period, are discussed below.

Estimated impairment of trade receivables,
amounts due from related companies and
amounts due from associates

When there is objective evidence of impairment loss, the

Group assesses impairment loss by taking into consideration

the estimation of future cash flows and the latest available

information of the financial position of the debtors. Where

the actual future cash flows are less than expected, a

material impairment loss may arise.

Estimated impairment of intangibles

The Group’s net carrying amount of technology license right

as at 31 December 2006 was approximately HK$9,800,000.

The management estimates the recoverable amount of the

intangibles by estimation of the future cash flows expected

to arise and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate

the present value. Change in the estimation may have a

material impact on the recoverable amount of the

intangibles.

4.

9,800,000
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2006

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade and

other receivables, amounts due from related companies,

amounts due from associates, bank balances and cash, trade

and other payables, amounts due to related companies,

amounts due to associates and borrowings. Details of these

financial instruments are disclosed in the respective notes.

The risk associated with these financial instruments and the

policies applied by the Group to mitigate these risks are set

out below. Management monitors these exposures to

ensure appropriate measures are implemented in a timely

and effective manner.

Credit risk

The Group’s major financial assets are trade receivables,

amounts due from associates, and amounts due from related

companies, bank balances, which represent the Group’s

maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to financial

assets.

In order to minimise the credit risk in relation to trade

receivables, amounts due from associates, and amounts due

from related companies, the management of the Group

reviews the recoverable amount of each individual trade

debt, amounts due from associates and amounts due from

related companies at each balance sheet date to ensure that

adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable

amounts. In this regard, the directors of the Company

consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the majority

of the counterparties are banks with high credit-ratings

assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

5.
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5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk relates primarily to fixed-rate

borrowings. The Group currently does not have policy to

against its interest risk. However, the management monitors

interest rate risk exposure and will consider implementing

appropriate measures when significant interest rate

exposure is anticipated.

6. TURNOVER

Turnover represents the gross invoiced value of goods sold

less discounts and sales related taxes and revenue from

service contracts. An analysis of the Group’s revenue for the

year from continuing and discontinued operation is as

follows:

5.  

6.

2006 2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

Continuing operations

Sales of goods 134,690 165,713

Revenue from service contracts 6,585 7,765

141,275 173,478

Discontinued operation

Sales of goods 14,924 12,306

156,199 185,784
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7. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL
SEGMENTS

(A) Business segments

For management purposes, the Group has been

organised into the following divisions:

Communication Products, Intelligent Transportation

Systems (“ ITS”) , V ideo Conference System,

Broadband Wireless Access and Wind Energy

Facilities. These divisions are the basis on which the

Group reports its primary segment information.

Principal activities are as follows:

Communication — manufacture and

Products distribution of

telecommunication

products

ITS — development,

manufacture,

distribution and

installation of global

positioning system

application products

Video Conference — development,

System (Note) manufacture,

distribution and

installation of video

conference system

Broadband — development, distribution

Wireless Access and installation of

broadband system,

equipment and

accessories

Wind Energy — maintenance and

Facilities operation of wind

energy plants

and facilities

Note: During the year, the Group has discontinued its

operation in video conference system (see note

10).

7.

A

10
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7. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL
SEGMENTS (Continued)

(A) Business segments (Continued)

(i) S e g m e n t  i n f o r m a t i o n  a b o u t  t h e s e

businesses for the year ended 31 December

2006 is presented below:

Income statement

Discontinued

operation

Continuing operations

Broadband Wind Video

Communication Wireless Energy Conference

Products ITS Access Facilities Others Eliminations Total System Consolidated

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

TURNOVER

External sales 55,506 32,073 53,696 — — — 141,275 14,924 156,199

RESULT

Segment result 4,503 (1,115 ) (62,892 ) (520 ) (117 ) — (60,141) 582 (59,559 )

Unallocated corporate expenses (13,851 ) — (13,851 )

Unallocated corporate income 14,585 — 14,585

Gain (loss) on disposal and

deemed disposal of subsidiaries 3,325 (684 ) 2,641

Finance costs (9,370 ) (77 ) (9,447 )

Share of results of associate 540 (671 ) (723 ) (446 ) — — (1,300 ) — (1,300 )

Loss before taxation (66,752 ) (179 ) (66,931 )

Taxation 1,751 (45 ) 1,706

Loss for the year (65,001 ) (224 ) (65,225 )

7.  

A  

i
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Broadband Wind
Communication Wireless Energy

Products ITS Access Facilities Others Consolidated

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

ASSETS

Segment assets 52,033 35,709 195,588 2,828 167 286,325

Interest in associates 530 1,320 3,423 73,675 5,916 84,864

Unallocated corporate assets 46,453

Consolidated total assets 417,642

LIABILITIES

Segment liabilities 11,746 18,957 7,379 5 47 38,134

Unallocated corporate liabilities 287,222

Consolidated total liabilities 325,356

7. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL
SEGMENTS (Continued)

(A) Business segments (Continued)

(i) S e g m e n t  i n f o r m a t i o n  a b o u t  t h e s e

businesses for the year ended 31 December

2006 is presented below: (Continued)

Balance sheet

7.  

A  

i
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Discontinued

Continuing operations operation

Broadband Wind Video

Communication Wireless Energy Conference

Products ITS Access Facilities Others Unallocated Total System Consolidated

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Capital additions

—  Property, plant and equipment  — 4,758 4,817 — — 25 9,600 187 9,787

Depreciation and amortisation

—  Property, plant and equipment  163 1,608 5,190 — 3 403 7,367 347 7,714

—  Development costs  856 2,619 3,475 — 3,475

—  Technology license right  — — 9,425 — — — 9,425 — 9,425

Allowance for doubtful debts — — 22,170 — — — 22,170 — 22,170

Allowance for obsolete inventories 5 — 1,911 — — — 1,916 — 1,916

Loss on disposal of property, plant and

equipment — 48 — — — — 48 — 48

Impairment loss recognised in respect of:

—  Development costs  — 207 146 — — — 353 — 353

—  Technology license right  — — 9,050 — — — 9,050 — 9,050

Impairment loss recognised in respect

of goodwill — — 542 — — — — — 542

Gain (loss) on disposal of subsidiaries — 980 2,345 — — — 3,325 (684 ) 2,641

7. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL
SEGMENTS (Continued)

(A) Business segments (Continued)

(i) S e g m e n t  i n f o r m a t i o n  a b o u t  t h e s e

businesses for the year ended 31 December

2006 is presented below:  (Continued)

Other information

7.  

A  

i
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Discontinued

Continuing operations operation

Broadband Wind Video

Communication Wireless Energy Conference

Products ITS Access Facilities Others Eliminations Total System Consolidated

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

TURNOVER

External sales 39,284 35,399 98,795 — — — 173,478 12,306 185,784

Inter-segment sales* * — 469 11,156 — — (11,625 ) — — —

Total 39,284 35,868 109,951 — — (11,625 ) 173,478 12,306 185,784

RESULT

Segment result (904 ) (893 ) 23,209 — (1,533 ) — 19,879 (4,680 ) 15,199

Unallocated corporate expenses (38,925 ) — (38,925 )

Finance costs (5,803 ) (86 ) (5,889 )

Share of results of associates — (259 ) — — — — (259 ) — (259 )

Loss before taxation (25,108 ) (4,766 ) (29,874 )

Taxation 439 71 510

Loss for the year (24,669 ) (4,695 ) (29,364 )

7. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL
SEGMENTS (Continued)

(A) Business segments (Continued)

(ii) S e g m e n t  i n f o r m a t i o n  a b o u t  t h e s e

businesses for the year ended 31 December

2005 is presented below:

Income statement

7.  

A  

ii

* Inter-segment sales are charged at

prevailing market prices.

*
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Video Broadband Wind
Communication Conference Wireless Energy

Products ITS System Access Facilities Others Consolidated

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

ASSETS

Segment assets 14,849 39,607 19,134 251,562 — 372 325,524

Interest in associates — 1,010 — — 7,640 — 8,650

Unallocated corporate assets 18,182

Consolidated total assets 352,356

LIABILITIES

Segment liabilities 16,356 17,790 3,175 41,511 — 594 79,426

Unallocated corporate liabilities 118,300

Consolidated total liabilities 197,726

7. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL
SEGMENTS (Continued)

(A) Business segments (Continued)

(ii) S e g m e n t  i n f o r m a t i o n  a b o u t  t h e s e

businesses for the year ended 31 December

2005 is presented below:  (Continued)

Balance sheet

7.  

A  

ii
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Discontinued

Continuing operations operation

Broadband Wind Video

Communication Wireless Energy Conference

Products ITS Access Facilities Others Unallocated Total System Consolidated

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Capital additions

— Property, plant and equipment  493 1,995 10,508 — 787 — 13,783 63 13,846

— Development costs  — — 2,418 — — — 2,418 — 2,418

Depreciation and amortisation

— Property, plant and equipment  119 1,334 4,902 — 13 410 6,778 425 7,203

— Development costs  — 944 1,560 — — — 2,504 250 2,754

— Technology license right  — — 2,262 — — — 2,262 — 2,262

(Reversal of) allowance for doubtful debts — (48 ) 3,561 — — — 3,513 1,665 5,178

Allowance for amount due from

an associate — — — — — 27,633 27,633 — 27,633

Allowance for obsolete inventories — 274 — — — — 274 — 274

Loss on disposal of property, plant and

equipment — 35 10 — — — 45 — 45

Impairment loss recognised in respect

of goodwill — — — — — — — 2,668 2,668

Write-off of development costs — 228 — — — — 228 — 228

7. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL
SEGMENTS (Continued)

(A) Business segments (Continued)

(ii) S e g m e n t  i n f o r m a t i o n  a b o u t  t h e s e

businesses for the year ended 31 December

2005 is presented below:  (Continued)

Other information

7.  

A  

ii
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7. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL
SEGMENTS (Continued)

(B) Geographical segments

The Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong

and other parts of the PRC.

(i) The following table provides an analysis of

the Group’s sales by geographical market:

Turnover

2006 2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

PRC 71,715 141,775

Hong Kong 14,100 15,919

United States of America 69,191 25,783

Others 1,193 2,307

156,199 185,784

7.  

B

i

(ii) The following is an analysis of the carrying

amount of the segment assets, and additions

to property, plant and equipment and

intangible assets, analysed by the geographical

area in which the assets are located.

Additions to property,

Carrying amount plant and equipment

of segment assets and intangible assets

2006 2005 2006 2005

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

PRC 186,514 269,905 7,860 15,739

Hong Kong 99,811 55,619 1,927 525

286,325 325,524 9,787 16,264

ii
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8. FINANCE COSTS

Continuing Discontinued

operations  operation Consolidated

2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Interest on:

Bank borrowings

— wholly repayable within  

five years 2,367 3,161 77 86 2,444 3,247

— not wholly repayable within  

five years — 494 — — — 494

Other loans

— wholly repayable within

five years 7,003 — — — 7,003 —

— not wholly repayable within  

five years — 2,148 — — — 2,148

9,370 5,803 77 86 9,447 5,889

8.
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9. TAXATION

Continuing Discontinued

operations  operation Consolidated

2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Tax credit (charge) for  the year

comprises:

Current tax:

Hong Kong (330 ) — — — (330 ) —

Other regions in the PRC (104 ) — — — (104 ) —

(434 ) — — — (434) —

(Under)overprovision in prior years:

Hong Kong (13 ) (19) — — (13 ) (19 )

Other regions in the PRC (19 ) — (45) 71 (64 ) 71

(32 ) (19) (45) 71 (77 ) 52

Deferred tax credit (note 27) 27 2,217 458 — — 2,217 458

1,751 439 (45) 71 1,706 510

9.
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9. TAXATION 

The reconciliation of tax credit for the year to the loss before

taxation is as follows:

2006 2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

Loss before taxation

Continuing operations (66,752) (25,108)

Discontinued operation (179) (4,766)

(66,931) (29,874)

Tax credit at Hong Kong Profits Tax 17.5%

of 17.5% (2005: 17.5%) 17.5%

11,713 5,228

Share of results of associates (228) (45)

Tax effect of expenses not deductible for

tax purpose (977) (1,243)

Tax effect of temporary differences not

recognised (823) —

Tax effect of income not taxable for

tax purpose 889 497

Tax effect of losses not recognised

(10,317) (11,561)

Utilisation of tax losses previously

not recognised 2,319 366

Effect of different tax rates of

subsidiaries operating in other

regions in the PRC (739) (320)

(Under)over provision in prior year (77) 52

Tax effect of tax exemption granted

to a PRC subsidiary — 7,530

Others (54) 6

Tax credit for the year 1,706 510

9.

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 17.5% of the estimated

assessable profit for the year. 17.5%
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9. TAXATION (Continued)

Pursuant to relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, the

Group’s subsidiaries operating in the PRC are entitled to

exemption and deductions from income tax under certain

tax holidays and concessions. Income tax is calculated at

rates given under the respective concessions.

10. DISCONTINUED OPERATION

On 22 November 2006, the Group entered into a sale and

purchase agreement in respect of the disposal of a

subsidiary, CASTEL Videotech (Hong Kong) Limited (“CASTEL

Videotech”) , which carr ied out al l  of  the Group’s

development, manufacture, distribution and installation of

video conference system. The disposal was effected in order

to generate cash flows for the expansion of the Group’s

other businesses. The disposal was effective in November

2006, in which the control of the disposal group passed to

the acquirer.

The loss for the year from the discontinued operation is

analysed as follows:

2006 2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

Profit (loss) of video conference

system operation for the year 460 (4,695)

Loss on disposal of video conference

system operation (see note 30) 30 (684) —

(224) (4,695)

9.

 

10. 
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10. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (Continued)

The results of the video conference system operation for

the year up to the date of disposal, which have been

included in the consolidated income statement, were as

follows:

2006 2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

Turnover 14,924 12,306

Cost of sales (9,625) (8,922)

Other income 460 189

Distribution costs (1,530) (888)

Administrative expenses (3,647) (7,365)

Finance costs (77) (86)

Profit (loss) before taxation 505 (4,766)

Taxation (45) 71

Profit (loss) for the year 460 (4,695)

Loss on disposal of video conference

system operation (684) —

(224) (4,695)

10.  

During the year, the video conference system operation paid

HK$5,771,000 (2005: HK$1,145,000) to the Group’s net

operating cash flows, paid HK$205,000 (2005: HK$54,000)

in respect of  investing activit ies and contr ibuted

HK$5,000,000 (2005: nil) in respect of financing activities.

The carrying amounts of the assets and liabilities of the

discontinued operation at the date of disposal are disclosed

in note 30.

5,771,000  

: 1,145,000 205,000

: 54,000

5,000,000

30
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11. LOSS FOR THE YEAR

Continuing Discontinued

operations  operation Total

2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Loss for the year has been arrived
at after charging:

Directors’ emoluments 1,164 3,774 — — 1,164 3,774
Other staff costs 23,672 18,282 2,718 2,017 26,390 20,299
Other staff’s retirement

benefits scheme
contributions 1,338 860 64 47 1,402 907

26,174 22,916 2,782 2,064 28,956 24,980

Amortisation of intangible assets
(Note) 12,900 4,766 — 250 12,900 5,016

Auditors’ remuneration 1,629 1,195 — 5 1,629 1,200
Cost of inventories recognised as

an expense 118,832 100,964 7,784 8,921 126,616 109,885
Depreciation of property, plant

and equipment 7,367 6,778 347 425 7,714 7,203
Loss on disposal of property, plant

and equipment 48 45 — — 48 45
Loss on disposal and deemed

disposal of subsidiaries — — 684 — 684 —
Impairment loss recognised in respect

of goodwill (included in administration
expenses) 542 — — 2,668 542 2,668

Minimum lease payments paid
under operating leases in respect
of land and buildings 3,725 3,352 89 97 3,814 3,449

Research and development expenses 1,620 696 — — 1,620 696
Allowance for doubtful debts 22,170 3,513 — 1,665 22,170 5,178
Allowance for obsolete inventories 1,916 274 — — 1,916 274
Write-off of development costs — 228 — — — 228
Exchange loss recognised 1,247 248 — — 1,247 248

and crediting:

Interest income 559 145 8 9 567 154
Write-back of interest payable

(see note 26) 26 14,585 — — — 14,585 —
Gain on disposal and deemed disposal

of subsidiaries 3,325 — — — 3,325 —

11.
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11. LOSS FOR THE YEAR (Continued)

Note: During the year, amortisation of intangible assets of

approximately HK$12,900,000 (2005: HK$4,264,000) and nil

(2005: HK$752,000) were included in cost of sales and

administrative expenses respectively.

12. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS

(a) Directors

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the

fourteen (2005: nine) directors were as follows:

2006 2005

Other emoluments Other emoluments

Retirement Retirement
Salaries benefits Salaries benefits

and other scheme and other scheme
Fees benefits contribution Total Fees benefits contribution Total

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Wang Xiaodong — 814 12 826 — 1,053 12 1,065
Han Jiang* * — 67 2 69 — 755 12 767
Zhou Xiaoyun* * — 67 2 69 — 747 12 759
Xu Jian Hua* * — — — — — 711 12 723
Ma Yucheng* * — — — — — 260 — 260
Liang Xiaohong — — — — — — — —
Wu Yansheng — — — — — — — —
Li Guang — — — — — — — —
Han Shuwang — — — — — — — —
Tang Guohong — — — — — — — —
Moh Kwen Yung 50 — — 50 50 — — 50
Zhu Shixiong 50 — — 50 50 — — 50
Wong Fai, Philip 50 — — 50 50 — — 50
Yiu Ying Wai 50 — — 50 50 — — 50

Total 200 948 16 1,164 200 3,526 48 3,774

11.  

12,900,000 (

4,264,000 ) (

752,000 )

12.

a

* These directors were resigned during the year

ended 31 December 2006. The amount shown

above represents the directors’ emoluments paid

during their period of services as directors.

*
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12. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Five highest paid individuals

The five highest paid individuals included three (2005:

four) directors, two (2005: nil) of whom resigned during

the year and became employees of the Group.

The emoluments of the five highest paid individuals

were as follows:

2006 2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

Salaries and other benefits 3,227 3,939

Retirement benefits scheme

contribution 60 60

3,287 3,999

The aggregate emoluments paid to each of the highest

paid individuals during the year did not exceed

HK$1,000,000.

13. DIVIDENDS

No dividend was paid or proposed during the year ended 31

December 2006, nor has any dividend been proposed since

the balance sheet date (2005: nil).

12.  

b

1,000,000

13.
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14. LOSS PER SHARE — BASIC

From continuing operations

The calculation of the basic loss per share from continuing

operations attributable to the ordinary equity holders of the

parent entity is based on the following data.

2006 2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

Loss for the purpose of basic

loss per share (64,562) (29,781)

Less: Loss for the year from

discontinued operations 224 4,695

Loss for the purpose of basic loss per

share from continuing operations (64,338) (25,086)

Number of shares

2006 2005

Weighted average number of shares

for the purpose of basic loss

per share 1,017,139,763 1,017,139,763

14.

From discontinued operation

Basic loss per share for the discontinued operation is HK0.02

cents per share (2005: HK0.46 cents per share), based on the

loss for the year from the discontinued operation of

HK$224,000 (2005: HK$4,695,000) and the denominators

detailed above for basic loss per share.

0.02

( 0.46 )

224,000 (

4,695,000 )
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15.

Plant,
Leasehold equipment Moulds Furniture

land and and and and office Motor
buildings machinery tools equipment vehicles Total

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

COST
At 1 January 2005 15,075 31,732 1,007 18,872 3,696 70,382
Exchange adjustment 290 616 12 102 40 1,060
Additions 7,133 2,890 144 3,015 664 13,846
Reclassifications — (2,087 ) 2,052 5 30 —
Disposals — (199 ) (146 ) (357 ) — (702 )

At 31 December 2005
22,498 32,952 3,069 21,637 4,430 84,586

Exchange adjustments 668 972 79 239 63 2,021
Additions 1,161 3,469 25 4,007 1,125 9,787
Disposed of on disposal and

deemed disposal of
subsidiaries (8,388 ) (2,939 ) (129 ) (6,958 ) (1,023 ) (19,437 )

Disposals (3,758 ) (323 ) — (308 ) (288 ) (4,677 )

At 31 December 2006
12,181 34,131 3,044 18,617 4,307 72,280

DEPRECIATION
At 1 January 2005 2,713 5,669 310 12,630 1,858 23,180
Exchange adjustment 53 121 5 55 10 244
Provided for the year 684 3,501 595 1,937 486 7,203
Reclassifications — (163 ) 132 29 2 —
Eliminated on disposals — (164 ) (47 ) (262 ) — (473 )

At 31 December 2005
3,450 8,964 995 14,389 2,356 30,154

Exchange adjustment 103 260 23 105 22 513
Provided for the year 616 3,927 592 2,067 512 7,714
Eliminated on disposal and

deemed disposal of
subsidiaries (51 ) (1,068 ) (45 ) (3,089 ) (556 ) (4,809 )

Eliminated on disposals (3,758 ) (69 ) — (242 ) (102 ) (4,171 )

At 31 December 2006
360 12,014 1,565 13,230 2,232 29,401

NET BOOK VALUES
At 31 December 2006

11,821 22,117 1,479 5,387 2,075 42,879

At 31 December 2005
19,048 23,988 2,074 7,248 2,074 54,432



85Annual Report 2006

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2006

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are

depreciated on a straight line basis at the following rates

per annum:

Leasehold land and 4 – 5% or over the unexpired

buildings lease terms

Plant, equipment and 9 – 15%

machinery

Moulds and tools 25%

Furniture and office 10 – 25%

equipment

Motor vehicles 18 – 25%

At 31 December 2005, the Group has pledged land and

buildings having a net book value of approximately

HK$10,280,000 (2006: nil) to secure general banking facilities

granted to the Group.

The Group’s property interests shown above were held

under medium term leases in the PRC.

15.  

4  5%

9  15%

25%

10  25%

18  25%

10,280,000
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16. GOODWILL

HK$’000

COST

At 1 January 2005 and 31 December 2005

4,275

Elimination on disposal and deemed disposal

of subsidiaries (1,065)

At 31 December 2006 3,210

IMPAIRMENT

At 1 January 2005 —

Impairment loss recognised for the year 2,668

At 31 December 2005 2,668

Impairment loss recognised for the year 542

At 31 December 2006 3,210

CARRYING VALUES

At 31 December 2006 —

At 31 December 2005 1,607

16.
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17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Development Technology
costs license right Total

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

COST
At 1 January 2005 14,444 35,100 49,544
Exchange adjustment 122 — 122
Additions 2,418 — 2,418
Write-off (457) — (457)

At 31 December 2005 16,527 35,100 51,627
Exchange adjustment 139 — 139
Disposed of on disposal

and deemed disposal
of subsidiaries (8,048) — (8,048)

At 31 December 2006
8,618 35,100 43,718

AMORTISATION AND
IMPAIRMENT

At 1 January 2005 8,590 4,563 13,153
Exchange adjustment 53 — 53
Amortised for the year 2,754 2,262 5,016
Eliminated on write-off (229) — (229)

At 31 December 2005 11,168 6,825 17,993
Exchange adjustment 62 — 62
Amortised for the year 3,475 9,425 12,900
Disposed of on disposal

and deemed disposal
of subsidiaries (6,440) — (6,440)

Impairment loss recognised 353 9,050 9,403

At 31 December 2006 8,618 25,300 33,918

NET BOOK VALUES
At 31 December 2006 — 9,800 9,800

At 31 December 2005 5,359 28,275 33,634

17.
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17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

Intangible assets are amortised on a straight line basis over

the following periods:

Development costs 3 – 5 years

Technology license right 3 years

Development costs are internally generated. Technology

license right, which included the right of distribution of

broadband products, was acquired from third party. During

the year, the directors reconsidered the useful life of the

technology license right and changed the estimate from 15

years to 3 years based on the expected years of benefit to

be generated. The change in estimate has resulted in an

increase in loss of HK$7,085,000 per annum in current year

and future years.

During the year, the directors conducted a review of the

Group’s intangible assets and determined that certain

intangible assets were impaired due to cessation of certain

self-development activities of the broadband products.

Accordingly, impairment losses of HK$353,000 and

HK$9,050,000 respectively have been recognised in respect

of the development costs and technology license right. The

remaining intangible assets after such cessation represents

the Group’s right of distribution of broadband products, the

recoverable amounts of the relevant assets have been

determined on the basis of their value in use. The discount

rates in measuring the amounts of value in use is 11%.

17.  

3 5

3

15 3

7,085,000

353,000

9,050,000

11%
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18. INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES

2006 2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

Cost of unlisted investments 86,572 9,058

Share of post-acquisition losses (1,708) (408)

Share of net assets 84,864 8,650

18.

The Group has discontinued recognition of its shares of

losses of certain associates. The amounts of unrecognised

share of those associates, both for the year and cumulatively,

are as follows:

2006 2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

Unrecognised share of profit of

associates for the year 530 576

Accumulated unrecognised share

of losses of associates (78,492) (79,022)
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18. INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

The summarised financial information in respect of the

Group’s associates is set out below:

18.  

2006 2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

Total assets 1,513,265 67,144

Total liabilities 1,221,662 122,306

Net assets (liabilities) 291,603 (55,162)

Revenue 15,207 38,578

(Loss) profit for the year (5,101) 547

Details of the principal associates of the Group at 31

December 2006 are set out in note 36.

19. INVENTORIES

36

19.

2006 2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

Raw materials 2,019 9,814

Work-in-progress 11,091 15,878

Finished goods 49,800 23,116

62,910 48,808
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20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Included in trade and other receivables are trade receivables

of HK$82,615,000 (2005: HK$155,577,000). The Group allows

credit periods ranging from 45 days to 180 days to its

customers for sales of goods. At the discretion of the

directors, several major customers were allowed to settle

their balances beyond the credit terms up to one year. The

average credit period of one year will be given to customers

for revenue from service contracts. The following is an aged

analysis of trade receivables at the balance sheet date:

2006 2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

Within 30 days 30 44,039 37,642

Between 31 — 90 days 31 — 90 2,682 21,741

Between 91 — 180 days 91 — 180 649 77,649

Between 181 — 365 days 181 — 365 832 7,647

Over 1 year 34,413 10,898

82,615 155,577

20.

82,615,000 155,577,000

 45 180

 

The fair values of the Group’s trade and other receivables at

the balance sheet date approximate to the corresponding

carrying amounts.

21. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO RELATED
COMPANIES

The amounts represent amounts due from/to China

Aerospace International Holdings Limited (“CASIL”) and its

subsidiaries. CASIL is an associate of CASC.

The amounts are unsecured, non-interest bearing and

repayable on demand. The directors of the Company are of

the opinion that their fair values at the balance sheet date

approximate to the carrying amounts.

21. /

/
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22. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO ASSOCIATES

The amounts are unsecured, non-interest bearing and

repayable on demand. The directors of the Company are of

the opinion that their fair values at the balance sheet date

approximate to the carrying amounts.

23. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS

The amount represents deposits pledged to banks for

general banking facilities granted to the Group. The deposits

carried fixed interest rate at 3.15% (2005: 3.1%) per annum.

The fair values of bank deposits at balance sheet date

approximate to the carrying amounts.

24. BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Bank balances and cash comprise demand deposits at an

average rate of 3.2%. The directors of the Company are of

the opinion that the fair values at the balance sheet date

approximate to the carrying amounts.

22. /

23.

3.15 3.1

24.

3.2
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25. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Included in trade and other payables are trade payables of

HK$19,844,000 (2005: HK$31,023,000). The following is an

aged analysis of trade payables at the balance sheet date:

25.

19,844,000 31,023,000

2006 2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

Within 30 days 30 14,576 14,641

Between 31 – 90 days 31  — 90 1,167 8,651

Between 91 –180 days 91 — 180 901 1,753

Between 181 – 365 days 181 — 365 84 1,120

Over 1 year 3,116 4,858

19,844 31,023

The fair values of the Group’s trade and other payables at

the balance sheet date approximate to the corresponding

carrying amount.



94

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2006

CASIL Telecommunications Holdings Limited

26. BORROWINGS

2006 2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

Bank loans – secured   — 7,157

Bank loans – unsecured   — 24,387

Bank overdrafts – unsecured   — 14,528

Total bank borrowings — 46,072

Other loans (note a) a 56,756 59,580

Short term shareholder’s loan (note b) b 40,594 —

Long term shareholder’s loan (note c) c 168,317 —

Total other loans 265,667 59,580

Total borrowings 265,667 105,652

Less: Amount due within one year

included under current

liabilities (97,350) (98,998)

Amount due after one year 168,317 6,654

The maturity of the Group’s

borrowings is as follows:

On demand or within one year 97,350 98,998

Between one to two years — 536

Between two to five years 168,317 1,837

Over five years — 4,281

265,667 105,652

26.
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26. BORROWINGS (Continued)

On 26 October 2006, the Group entered into an agreement

with a bank in respect of the Group’s outstanding bank

borrowings (the “Settlement Agreement”). Pursuant to the

Settlement Agreement, the Group has discharged all the

liabilities in respect of the outstanding loans (including

interest payable) by the repayment of HK$39,000,000.

Accordingly, the interest payable brought forward

amounting to approximately HK$14,585,000 has been

written-back in the consolidated income statement during

the year.

Notes:

(a) The amount in 2006 (2005: HK$54,773,000) represents

advance from China Great Wall Industry Corporation, a

wholly-owned subsidiary of CASC, and the respective

interests accrued. Such advances are unsecured, bears

interest at 4.25% (2005: 4.25%) per annum and are

repayable  on demand. The interests  accrued of

HK$9,957,000 (2005: HK$7,973,000) is unsecured, non-

interest bearing and repayable on demand. The remaining

balance of other loans in 2005 represented advance from

an independent third party with interest rate at 5.8% per

annum.

(b) The amount represents loan advanced from CALT through

 (“CASIL Finance”) as the trustee.

The amount is unsecured, bears interest at 5.10% per

annum and repayable in full on 29 August 2007. CASIL

Finance is a subsidiary of CASC.

(c) The amount represents loan advanced from CALT through

CASIL Finance as the trustee. The amount is unsecured,

bears interest at 5.04% per annum and repayable in full

on 29 August 2011.

The Group had variable-rate borrowings at 31 December

2005 which carried interest at 2% to 3% above prime rate.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the fair value

of the Group’s borrowings at the balance sheet date

approximates to the corresponding carrying amount.

26.  

39,000,000

14,585,000

a 54,773,000

4.25

4.25

9,957,000

7,973,000

5.8

b

5.10

(c)

5.04%

2 3
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27. DEFERRED TAXATION

The followings are the major deferred tax liabilities (assets)

recognised by the Group.

27.

Accelerated

tax Development Technology

depreciation costs license right Tax losses Total

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

At 1 January 2005

477 104 5,344 (3,250 ) 2,675

(Credit) charge for the year (134 ) (34) (396) 106 (458)

At 31 December 2005

343 70 4,948 (3,144 ) 2,217

(Credit) charge for the year (191 ) (70) (3,233) 1,277 (2,217 )

At 31 December 2006

152 — 1,715 (1,867) —

For the purpose of balance sheet presentation, certain
deferred tax assets and liabilities have been offset.

At 31 December 2006, the Group has unused tax losses of
approximately HK$247,758,000 (2005: HK$231,436,000)
available for offset against future profits. A deferred tax asset
has been recognised in respect of  approximately
HK$10,669,000 (2005: HK$17,970,000) of such tax losses. No
deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the
remaining tax losses of approximately HK$237,089,000
(2005: HK$213,466,000) due to unpredictability of future
profit streams. Included in unrecognised tax losses are losses
of HK$67,937,000 (2005: HK$55,000,000) that may be carried
forward indefinitely. The remaining unrecognised tax losses
will be expired within five years.

At the balance sheet date, the Group has deductible
temporary difference of HK$4,705,000 (2005: nil). No
deferred tax asset has been recognised in relation to such
deductible temporary difference as it is not probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary difference can be utilised.

247,758,000
231,436,000

10,669,000 
17,970,000

237,089,000
213,466,000

67,937,000 55,000,000

4,705,000
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28. SHARE CAPITAL 28.

Number of shares Amount

2006 & 2005 2006 & 2005

HK$’000

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each

Authorised:

At beginning and end of the year 10,000,000,000 1,000,000

Issued and fully paid:

At beginning of the year and

at end of the year 1,017,139,763 101,714

29. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

Under the terms of the share option scheme of the Company

(the “CASTEL Scheme”) which became effective on 23 July

1997 and shall be valid until 23 July 2007, the board of

directors may offer to any full time employees, including

executive directors of the Company and/or any of its

subsidiaries, options to subscribe for shares in the Company

at a price which is not less than the higher of the nominal

value of the shares and 80% of the average of the closing

prices of the shares on the Stock Exchange on the five

trading days immediately preceding the date of grant of the

options, subject to a maximum of 10% of the issued share

capital of the Company from time to time. Pursuant to

Chapter 17 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities

on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) with which the

Company must comply, the exercise price of options under

an option scheme must be at least the higher of: (i) the

closing price of the shares on the Stock Exchange on the

date of grant, which must be a business day; and (ii) the

average closing price of the shares for the five business days

immediately preceding the date of grant. The total number

of options to be issued to each participant in any twelve-

month period must not exceed 1% of the share capital of

29.

80%

10%

17

i

ii
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29. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)

the company in issue. The options granted must be accepted

within 28 days from date of grant. Upon acceptance of an

offer of options, an amount of HK$1 by way of consideration

is payable by the employee. Options may be exercised at

any time for a period to be determined by the directors of

the Company, which shall not exceed ten years from the

adoption of the CASTEL Scheme. Unless other wise

terminated or altered, the CASTEL Scheme will remain in

force for a period of ten years from the date of adoption.

The purpose of the Scheme is to recognise the contribution

of employees of the Group.

No share option under  the CASTEL Scheme was granted to

the directors or employees of the Company or its

subsidiaries at 31 December 2005 and 31 December 2006.

30. DISPOSAL AND DEEMED DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES

On 30 June 2006, CASTEL Qihua Hi-Tech Investments Limited

(“CASTEL Qihua”), a subsidiary of the Company, entered into

an agreement with Concord Pacific Satellite Technologies

Limited (“Concord Pacific”), an independent third party,

under which Concord Pacific agreed to invest HK$2,000,000

directly in CASTEL Spaceinet (Hong Kong) Communications

Limited (“Spaceinet HK”) and that Spaceinet HK would allot

1,020,000 shares to Concord Pacific and 979,998 shares to

CASTEL Qihua respectively. Upon the completion of the

transaction, Concord Pacific owned as to 51% of the total

issued shares of Spaceinet HK. Spaceinet HK was engaged

in the development, distribution and installation of Global

Position System application and related product and a gain

on disposal of HK$980,000 was recognised.

29.  

1% 28

1

30.

2,000,000

1,020,000 979,998

51%

980,000
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30. DISPOSAL AND DEEMED DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

On 30 September 2006, CASTEL Broadband Holdings

Limited and , wholly-owned

subsidiaries of the Company, entered into an agreement

with Hao Hsin Trading and Investment Company Limited

(“Hao Hsin”), an independent third party, under which Hao

Hsin agreed to invest HK$15,000,000 in 

 (“CASTEL Wireless”). Upon completion

of the transaction, the share capital of CASTEL Wireless was

increased from HK$5,006,781 to HK$20,006,781, and Hao

Hsin owned as to 75% of the total enlarged issued shares of

CASTEL Wireless. Accordingly, CASTEL Wireless and its

subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “CASTEL Wireless

Group”), became an associate of the Group. CASTEL Wireless

Group was principally engaged in the development,

distribution and installation of broadband system,

equipment and accessories. A gain on disposal of

HK$2,345,000 was recognised from this transaction.

On 22 November 2006, the Company, entered into an

agreement with Brightness International Holding Limited

(“Brightness”), an independent third party, under which

Brightness agreed to acquire 40% equity interests of CASTEL

Videotech at a consideration of HK$4,100,000 from the

Company. Brightness further agreed to subscribe 2,505,000

new shares  for  a  considerat ion of  HK$4,000,000,

representing 20% of the total issued shares of CASTEL

Videotech after completion of the transaction. CASTEL

Videotech became an associate of the Group upon

completion of the above transactions. CASTEL Videotech

was principally engaged in the development, manufacture,

distribution and installation of video conference system and

a loss on disposal of HK$684,000 was recognised. The above

disposal of CASTEL Videotech constituted a discontinued

operation of the Group as CASTEL Videotech and its

subsidiary contributed to the Group’s development,

manufacture, distribution and installation of video

conference system before the disposal (see note 10).

30.  

Hao Hsin Trading and

Investment Company Limited Hao Hsin

Hao Hsin 15,000,000

5,006,781 20,006,781

Hao Hsin

75%

2,345,000

4,100,000

40%

4,000,000 2,505,000

20%

684,000

10
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30. DISPOSAL AND DEEMED DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Spaceinet CASTEL CASTEL

HK Wireless Videotech Total

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

NET ASSETS DISPOSED OF

Property, plant and equipment 1,906 11,775 947 14,628

Intangible assets — 1,608 — 1,608

Inventories 172 1,328 9,724 11,224

Trade and other receivables 279 7,765 6,101 14,145

Bank balances and cash 153 1,254 494 1,901

Trade and other payables (2,510) (15,692) (7,421) (25,623)

Bank borrowings — (6,453) — (6,453)

Taxation — — (130) (130)

— 1,585 9,715 11,300

Attributable goodwill — — 1,065 1,065

Exchange reserve realised — 216 (84) 132

— 1,801 10,696 12,497

Gain (loss) on disposal 980 2,345 (684) 2,641

Total consideration 980 4,146 10,012 15,138

Satisfied by:

Interest in associates 980 4,146 5,912 11,038

Cash — — 2,100 2,100

Other receivables — — 2,000 2,000

980 4,146 10,012 15,138

Net cash (outflow) inflow

arising on disposals:

Cash consideration received — — 2,100 2,100

Bank balances and cash

disposed of (153) (1,254) (494) (1,901)

(153) (1,254) 1,606 199

30.  
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30. DISPOSAL AND DEEMED DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

There was no significant impact on the Group’s results and

cash flows in the current year in respect of the disposal of

Spaceinet HK.

During the year, CASTEL Wireless paid HK$6,355,000 to the

G r o u p’s  n e t  o p e r a t i n g  c a s h  f l o w s , c o n t r i b u t e d

HK$10,906,000 in respect of investing activities and paid

HK$5,511,000 in respect of financing activities. CASTEL

Wireless contributed turnover of HK$6,273,000 and profit

for the year of HK$1,630,000 to the Group.

31. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

At 31 December 2006, the Group was committed to capital

expenditure of approximately HK$54 million (2005: HK$108

million) for the investment of two sino-foreign joint ventures

of the Group. The sino-foreign joint ventures are engaged

in the operation of wind energy plants and facilities power

in the Jiangsu and Jilin Province of the PRC respectively and

are owned as to 25% by the Group.

In addition, the Group was also committed to capital

expenditure of approximately HK$25 million (2005: nil) for

the investment of a joint venture of the Group. The joint

venture is engaged in the operation of wind energy plants

and facilities in the Liaoning Province of the PRC. The joint

venture is owned as to 40% by the Group.

30.  

6 , 3 5 5 , 0 0 0

10,906,000 5,511,000

6,273,000 1,630,000

31.

54,000,000 108,000,000

25%

25,000,000

40%
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32. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

At the balance sheet date, the Group had future minimum

lease payments payable under operating leases in respect

of land and buildings as set out below:

2006 2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

Within one year 1,498 3,118

In the second to fifth years inclusive

440 1,477

1,938 4,595

32.

Leases are generally negotiated for an average term of two

years and rentals are fixed for the lease period.

33. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme

(the “Scheme”) for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong.

The assets of the Scheme are held separately from those of

the Group in funds under the control of trustee. The Group

contributes 5% of relevant payroll costs to the Scheme,

which contribution is matched by employees.

The employees of the Company’s PRC subsidiaries are

members of the state-managed retirement benefits scheme

operated by the PRC government. The Company’s PRC

subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage

of their payroll to the retirement benefits scheme to fund

the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect

to the retirement benefits scheme is to make the required

contributions under the scheme.

33.

 

5%
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34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/
BALANCES

(a) During the year, the Group had the following

significant transactions with related parties:

34.

a

2006 2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

Sales of goods to associates 444 1,794

Purchase of goods from

associates 9,853 15,158

Other than the above, the Group also has balances

with related parties disclosed in note 21 and note

22.

(b) Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of key management during the

year was as follows:

2006 2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

Short-term benefits 3,427 4,399

Post-employment benefits 60 60

3,487 4,459

21 22

b

T h e  r e m u n e r a t i o n  o f  k e y  m a n a g e m e n t  i s

determined by the remuneration committee having

regard to the performance of individuals and market

trends.
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34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/
BALANCES(Continued)

(c) Transactions/balances with other state-controlled

entities in the PRC

The Group operates in an economic environment

currently predominated by entities directly or

indirect ly  owned or  control led by the PRC

government (“state-controlled entities”). In addition,

the Group itself  is  part of a larger group of

companies under CASC which is controlled by the

PRC government.

Apart from the disclosure in (a) above, the Group also

conducts business with other state-controlled

entities. The directors consider those state-

controlled entities independent third parties so far

as the Group’s business with them are concerned:

(i) The Group has certain deposits placements,

borrowings and other general banking

facilities with certain banks, which are stated-

controlled entities in its ordinary course of

business. In view of the nature of those

banking transactions, the directors are of the

opinion that separate disclosure would not

be meaningful.

(ii) The Group also has cer tain sales and

p u rc h a s e s  t ra n s a c t i o n s  w i t h  ce r t a i n

customers and suppliers in which the

directors are of the opinion that it  is

impracticable to ascertain the identity of the

counterparties and accordingly whether the

transactions are with other state-controlled

entities.

Except as disclosed above, the directors are of the

opinion that the transactions with other state-

controlled entities are not significant to the Group’s

operations.

34.

c

a

i

ii
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34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/
BALANCES (Continued)

(d) On 30 August 2006, ( )

(“CATSZ”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the

Company, entered into two loan agreements for a

s u m  o f  R M B 4 1 , 0 0 0 , 0 0 0  ( a p p r o x i m a t e l y

HK$40,594,000) and RMB170,000,000 (equivalent to

approximately HK$168,317,000) with CALT through

CASIL Finance as the trustee. These loans are

unsecured, bear interest at 5.10% and 5.04% per

annum and are repayable on 29 August 2007 and

29 August 2011 respectively.

35. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENT

On 15 February 2007 and 27 March 2007, the Company,

Astrotech and Advanced Grade Holdings Limited

(“Advanced Grade”) entered into a sale and purchase

agreement and a supplemental agreement pursuant to

which the Company conditionally agreed to acquire, and

Astrotech agreed to sell the entire issued share capital of

Advanced Grade for a consideration of HK$900,000,000. The

consideration is to be satisfied by (i) HK$130,000,000 in cash

and ( i i )  the al lotment and issue of  2,200,000,000

consideration shares to Astrotech. The cash consideration

will be financed by the proceeds from an open offer of

shares. The transaction was not yet completed as at the date

of this report.

34.

d

41,000,000

40,594,000 170,000,000

168,317,000

5.10% 5.04%

35.

Astrotech Advanced

Grade Holdings Limited Advanced Grade

A s t r o t e c h

Advanced Grade

9 0 0 , 0 0 0 , 0 0 0 i

130,000,000 ii Astrotech

2,200,000,000
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35. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENT (Continued)

Advanced Grade is a company incorporated in the British

Virgin Islands with limited liability and a wholly-owned

subsidiary of Astrotech. It is an investment holding company

and will hold the entire equity interest in Beijing Wan Yuan

Industry Corporation (“Beijing Wan Yuan”) after completion

of the transaction. Beijing Wan Yuan is an investment

holding company which, upon completion of restructuring,

will hold a 49% equity interest in Beijing Delphi Wan Yuan

Engine Management Systems Co., Ltd., a 40% equity interest

in Beijing Wanyuan GDX Automotive Sealing Products Co.,

Ltd., a 29% equity interest in Hangzhou Aerospace Wan Yuan

REPM Motor Application Technology Co., Ltd., a 45% equity

interest in Nantong CASC Wanyuan Accoina Wind Turbine

Manufacture Corporation Ltd., and a 45% interest in Beijing

Delphi Wan Yuan Engine Management Systems Co., Ltd.

(collectively referred to as the “Target Associates”).

The Target Associates are mainly engaged in automotive

e n g i n e  m a n a g e m e n t  s y s t e m s  a n d  c o m p o n e n t s

m a n u f a c t u r i n g , a u t o m o t i v e  s e a l i n g  p r o d u c t s

manufacturing, elevator motor manufacturing, wind turbine

manufacturing and renewable energy projects.

35.  

Advanced Grade

Astrotech

49%

40%

29%

45%

45%



107Annual Report 2006

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2006

36. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES

Details of the principal subsidiaries and associates of the

Group at 31 December 2006 are as follows:

Nominal value of Percentage of equity

issued ordinary

share capital/ held by attributable

Name of company registered capital the Company to the Group Principal activities

% %

Subsidiaries

Incorporated and operating

in Hong Kong:

China Aerospace HK$10,000 100 — Distribution of

Telecommunications Limited broadband

business

10,000

CASTEL Intelligent Transportation HK$11,600,000 — 70 Distribution of

System Limited ITS business

11,600,000

China Aerospace HK$10,000 — 100 Distribution of

Telecommunications broadband  business

 (Hong Kong) Limited

( ) 10,000

CASTEL Qihua Hi-Tech Investments HK$8,000,000 — 70 Investment holding

Limited

8,000,000

Hung Nien Electronics Limited HK$30,001,000 — 100 Distribution of

telecommunication

products

30,001,000

36.
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Nominal value of Percentage of equity

issued ordinary

share capital/ held by attributable

Name of company registered capital the Company to the Group Principal activities

% %

Subsidiaries (Continued)

Registered and operating in the PRC:

Beijing Qihua Communications US$1,239,000 — 55 Distribution of

Co., Ltd.# ITS business

# 1,239,000

CASTEL Intelligent Transportation HK$8,000,000 — 70 Distribution of

System (Beijing) Ltd.## ITS business

## 8,000,000

## RMB15,000,000 — 100 Distribution of

broadband business

 15,000,000

## HK$20,000,000 — 100 Distribution of

broadband business

20,000,000

## RMB3,000,000 — 36 Distribution of ITS

business

3,000,000

36. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES
(Continued)

36.  

# Sino-foreign joint equity enterprise registered in the PRC

## Wholly foreign-owned enterprise registered in the PRC

#

##
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36. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES
(Continued)

Nominal value of Percentage of equity

issued ordinary

share capital/ held by attributable

Name of company registered capital the Company to the Group Principal activities

% %

Associates

Registered and operating

in the PRC:

HK$20,000,000 — 25 Distribution of

# broadband business

20,000,000

CASTEL Intelligent Transportation RMB5,000,000 — 25 Distribution of

System (Shenzhen) Ltd. # ITS business

 # 5,000,000

CASTEL Spaceinet (Shenzhen) RMB1,071,000 — 25 Distribution of

Co. Ltd. # broadband business

# 1,071,000

CASIL Telecommunications HK$10,000,000 — 40 Manufacture and

(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.## distribution of

 10,000,000 telecommunication

## products

Southern Telecommunication US$8,400,000 — 41 Manufacture and

Development Company Limited# distribution of

( ) # 8,400,000 telecommunication

products

36.  
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36. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES
(Continued)

Nominal value of Percentage of equity
issued ordinary
share capital/ held by attributable

Name of company registered capital the Company to the Group Principal activities

% %

Associates (Continued)

 # RMB5,000,000 — 21 Distribution of ITS
business

5,000,000

 # RMB211,610,000 — 25 Maintenance and
operation of wind
energy plants and
facilities

211,610,000

 # RMB269,020,000 — 25 Construction of wind
energy plants and
facilities in progress

269,020,000

( )  # RMB93,800,000 — 40 Construction of wind
energy plants and
facilities in progress

93,800,000

36.  

# Sino-foreign joint equity enterprise registered in the PRC

## Wholly foreign-owned enterprises registered in the PRC

Except for the companies established in the PRC, the classes
of shares held by the Group in the above companies are
ordinary shares issued by those companies.

The above table lists the subsidiaries and associates of the
Company which, in the opinion of the directors, principally
affected the results or assets or form a substantial portion
of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries and associates would, in the opinion of the
directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at
the end of the year.

#

##
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37. BALANCE SHEET INFORMATION OF THE
COMPANY

Balance sheet information of the Company at the balance
sheet date includes:

2006 2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 1,011 1,389
Interest in subsidiaries 20 30
Interest in associates 3,604 —

4,635 1,419

Current assets
Trade and other receivables 3,023 801
Amounts due from subsidiaries 77,885 159,567
Amounts due from associates 30,710 —
Amounts due from related companies 41 41
Bank balances and cash 2,163 701

113,822 161,110

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 3,546 8,148
Amounts due to subsidiaries 13,029 8,047
Amounts due to related companies 7,647 7,647
Borrowings — 20,945

24,222 44,787

Net current assets 89,600 116,323

Total assets 94,235 117,742

Capital and reserves
Share capital 101,714 101,714
(Deficit) reserves (7,479) 16,028

Total equity 94,235 117,472

37.

23,507,000

48,007,000

Loss of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2006

amounted to HK$23,507,000 (2005: HK$48,007,000).
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Year ended 31 December

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Turnover 113,534 143,872 148,126 185,784 156,199

(Loss) profit before taxation (406) 26 6,722 (29,874) (66,931)

Taxation (1,529) (1,079) (2,544) 510 1,706

(Loss) profit for the year (1,935) (1,053) 4,178 (29,364) (65,225)

 At 31 December

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Total assets 269,685 317,032 357,333 352,356 417,642

Total liabilities (141,200) (173,938) (175,991) (197,726) (325,356)
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